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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

DEPOSITICN OF DAVID A. DURAND

Dow Center

Patrick Road and Abbot Street
Building 2030

Executive Wing

Midland, Michigan

Monday, 14 May 1979

Deposition of DAVID A. DURAND, called for examination
at 3:5' p.m., pursuant to prehearing conference order of
the Atomic Safety and Licensing Board, before Helen M.
Rabbage, & notary public in and for the County of Midland,
State of Michigan, when were present cn behalf of the
respective parties:

WILLIAM J. OLMSTEAD, Esg., Office of Executive Legal
Director, U. S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission,
Washington, D. C., on behalf of the NRC Regulatory
Staff,

WILLIAM C, POTTER, Jr., Esqg., Fischer, Pranklin, Ford,
Simon & Hogg, 1700 Guardian Building, Detroit,
Michigan; and

R. L. DAVIS, Esg., Michigan Division, Legal Department,
47 Building, Midland, Michigan 48640, on behalf of
Dow Chemical Ceompany.

GERALD CHARNOFT, Esqg., ALLEN WEISBARD, Esqg., and
WILLIAM BRADFORD REYNOLDS, Esg., 3haw, Pittman,
Potts & Trowbridce, 1800 M, Street, N.W., Washington,
L. C. 20036, on behalf of Consumers Power Companv.

RONALD G, ZAMARIY, Esc., Isham, Lincoln & 3eale,
One First National Plaza, Chicaco, Illinois 60603,
oen behalf ¢f Consumers Pcwer Company.
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WITNESS:

David A, Durand

EXHIBITS:

(None.)
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PROCEEDINGS
MR, OLMSTEAD: On the record.
Whereupcon,
DAVID A. DURAND
wis called as a witness and, having been first duly sworn,
was examined and testified as follows:
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:
Q Would you state ycur full name, address and
occupation for the record?
A Pavid A. Durand, l4l Soring Street., Route §,
Midland, Michigan.
I'm an attorney for the Dow Chenical Company.
Q De you hold the same position you held from
June 30, 1576 to June 1, 19772
A I hold the same title., My duties have changed
considerably., I was an attorney then, I'm an attorney now,
but I'm now the labor attorney with the Dow Chemical
Company.
Q And what positicn and resronsibilities did yeou
held at the time of the June 30, 1976 to June 1, 1977
pericd?
A I was an attorney counselling the Michigan

Division at that time.

Q Throughuut that pericd?
—_ ‘ ~nT
Hee- Fecera cRescrizzs, Une et [ D~
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A Throughout that period, ves.

Q And what was your relatiocnship to Lee Nute?
A Lee Nute was my superior.

Q To Lou Pribila?

A Lou Pribila and I were co=-workers.

Q Milton Wessel?

A Milton Wessel I believe at that time he was

retained counsel for Dow Chemical.

Q And to Tim Hanes?
A Jim Hanes was vice president and general counsel,
Dow, US He would have been T:2's bosc and my == I guess

my big bess, as such.

Q How long have you been employed by Dow Chemical?
A A little over 20 years,

Q Throughout that period, have you been an attorney

with Dow Chemical?
A No. I became an attorney for Dow Chemical in

September of 1373.

Q Taking the Bar examination following that?
A Yes, I tock the 3ar exam scmetinme after that,

T assumed the title of attorney -=- I tcck the Bar in

Q when did vou f£first beccme aware c:f the decisicn
£ she Distrist of Columbia Ceurt cof Appeals invelving the
Midland Nuclear Facility?
S o o E '
e Federal cRezoriens, Jnc “h' L
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A Probably scon after it was published, I'm not

sure of the date. Probably the latter part of 1976. I don't

know whether that's when it was published.

Q It came out in July oI '976.

A Okay. I probably be. aware of it shortl
thereafter.

Q .At that time did you have any responsibilities

|

|

concerning the oncoing negotiations between Dow and Consumers

Power .o.wany on the Midland steam contract?

A None whatscever,

Q At what time did youv become aware that that
court's decision was going to require you to have scme
involvement witl regard to the Midland-Dow steam contract?

A Probably the day before the September 28, 1976
meeting between Mr, Wessel and “r, Nute.

Q So up to that time you had had no invelvement
with the Dow steam contract at all?

A That's coriact.

Q So that weould have been the attending cof the
meeting cf September 29, . kelieve it was, was the first
time that you had any involvement?

A Yes,

Q During the pericd following the time that veu
had involvement on the Cow steam contract, what CTow
emplovees did vou interact with?

e Feaeral cResortens, Jnc . ¥
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b1 Lee Nute, Joe Temple, Connie Miller, who was
legal secretary, Jim Burroughs . . . there may have been

scme cther pecple. I don't recall right now at the moment.

Q Did you have any contact with Consumers Power
peisonnel?

A Yes.

Q Other than in the meetings at which you took
notes?

A No.

Q Did you have any contact with intervenors other

than Dow, Myron Cherry, Peter Flynn, Mary Sinclair, et al?
A I had some discussions during some of the
hearings in Chicago with Myron Cherry, chatted briefly from

time to time, and Mrs. Sinclair.

Q Curing the hearings? i
A Well, during the breaks and stuff, yes. ;
Q Cther than at the hearings, any rhone conversaticn%

with them? i
A I had a phone conversation with Myren Cherrv

scmetime , . . the date decesn't . . . scmetime afser =ha+

9=29 meeting. It might have been scmetime in October of 1375,

He called me at hcme, or I got a messace that he wanted =2

talx to either myself cr Mr, Nute or Mr, Wessel. AaAné =

called him back frcm hcme. Ze was in Chicuge., We hraé a

lengthy telephcone conversaticn, He gave me scme data =has

7 ™z 4 5 1 ;
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he wanted documents on and stuff, and I prepared just a
sumary of my phone conversation. I think it was cn a
Saturday or 2 Sunday.

Q So there is a record of that phu..e conversation?

A I think there is. I think it's listed among
the documents.

Q Did you have an occasicn to talix with personnel
representing the NRC Staff at that time?

A I don't believe so. I think other than just
chatting with them during breaks and stuff,

Q Did you have occasion, once you were invelved,
to attend meetings within Dow Chemical Company to the
exzlusion of other parties in the proceeding concerning the
nuclear steam contract?

A Like the meetings, say, ~ith Consumers Power
retained counsel or their counsel?

Q Right.

A I think as an ongoing thing I met with my bess,
Lee Nute, and talked abcut things.

Q We'll go intc the meeting noctes that you took
in some detail later, but I just would like tc ask th
general cuesticn about the discussions which went on
cencerninge the testincny that Cow perscnnel might give
cencerning contract relations with Consumers Pocwer Clcompany,

andé ask the cquesticn: Have vou ever expressed any zerscnal

- — ] . e~
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views as to the issue of the testimony, as to who should
give it, what should be in it?

A Myself, no.

Q What would vou describe as the rteneral attitude
umong the Dow legal staff toward the NRC Staff in the
forthcoming hearings?

MR, POTTER: That's an awfully trocad guesticn.

MR. OLMSTEAD: I know. I just pointed out it's
a general gquestion.

MR, POTTER: You mean like persocnal?

MR, OLMSTEAD: I'm trying to get a feeling for
the legal staff's view of the parties in the proceeding as

background, more than anything else.

MR, POTTER: Are you talking about in preparation

for the suspension hearings?

MR, OLMSTEAD: For the suspensicn hearings, the
general preparaticn that was cgoing on.

THE WITNESS: I think at the time, I'm not so
sure ycu're talking == I'm relating now only about
discussions or cpinicns that Dow emplovees may have had,
I'm nct so sure that, at least tefore we had anv contacs
with them, whether they had anv op
I'a not so suve that we == I can't recall that we had hasd

any ccntact with them, which is €9 sav I'm not sc sure +=hev

had anv opinion at all, gocd or bad,
g X)L F LD 7
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Q Okay. Well, then, what abcut intervencrs other
than Dow? Myron Cherry, Peter Flynn and Mary Sinclair.
Was there any prevailing attitude, view, belief, commonly
held assumptions concerming their participation?

A As to Myrun Cherry, I think the opinion was
held that he was pretty zhrasive, pretty thorough. They
could ‘expect to have him participate in such a manner that
he'd try to bring out a complete record, as such, tipping

to his advantage. So that the preparation would have had

to have been complete to prepare for cross-examination, and

that sort of stuff,
Mary Sinclair, I think the opinion was that

she had been on this thing for quite scme time, and they

weren't really sure if she was == her position was justified,

valid or not., I .emember at times some peoprle expressed
some frustration with the fact that her participation had
caused delay and sctuff,

Q Either as to the NRC Staff or intervencrs other
than Dow, do you think there was any zerscnal hostility
among any £ the emplovees of D tovard any cf these
ceop.l2?

A No, I really don't think so. In fact, in
z1laticn 22 Mvren Cherzv cectle that I remember talx

rudg

"

a

'J

about him had mavbe sort ©

)

ng resgect at times,
But hestility, no, either to Myron Cherry or intervenors.
1 \—V / ’ ~ /y
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Q With regard tc Consumers Power Ccmpany rerscnnel
what was the generally held feelings toward them?

A The only person I think == Consumers Power

personnel == th.t I'd heard anything about was their counsel,

Judd Bacon. The consensus -~ not the ccnsensus == at least
one person felt that they didn't feel that they could
trust him, or they didn't have respect for him, because of

prior dealing with him during negotiations and stuff.

Q And who was that?
A Lee Nute.
Q Was it generally believed by the legal staff

coming up to the remanded hearings that the Commission

wou .d qv.uckly handle the remanded proceedings, take scme
time, suspend the license or not suspend the license? Was
there any generz. feeling about what might happen as a
result of the rem:c i proceedings?

A Well, we depencded a lot on our feelings feor

feedback from the Ccnsumers Jnwer people, and their retained

counsel, spe "ifically Rex Renfrow and Dave Rosso, just to
get a feel for, vou know, how they might go, how lenc it
micht take, and what direction they migh: move in.

I thitk the general cpinion was they'd srebaily
take scme tire == ceally not as much time as they il ==
But they'd take scre time. As to whether or not they weuld
result in suspension being granted, I guess we felt that it

HAce- Federal HRepoties, Tre

Add NORTH CTAPTOL STREXT ~ N\
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wouldn't be granted.
Q Did vou -= did anyone that you were associated

with with regard to these issues on the staff have any

|
|
|
|
{
1
|

personal feelings about M:, Renfrcw or Mr, Rosso, particular=

ly following scme of the meetings that you held?

A I think in regards to Mr, Renfrow scme members

of the legal staff felt that == well, they knew that he had

worked for the NRC before he came to the firm of Isham,

Linceln & Beale, and I guess particularly 2fter scme of

the sessions we haé with him in preparing testimony and

stuff, they weren't really sure ‘£, you know, he had his
act together at times.

i think a lot of that stemmed from maybe the
way he proceeded to get into issues and stuff, but then at
other times they expressed maybe surprise that the guy
got into things as deep as he did in some areas.

Maybe the consensus was that == I guess it
depénded on what kind of subject he was dealing with.

Q Did anybedy express the belief durirg that
pericd of time leading up to the first of the rearings in
December of 1976 that Consumers' license w~as in sericus
jeopardy?

-

MR, ZARMOEF?: This is at what time?

i
"

-

ectember <

7

.sR, OLMSTEAD: This is tetween

W

1976 and Ncvember 20, 1376, the £first day ¢f the hearings.

c4 C el . =) 7
ce- Jeaeral JNegotiets, JnG
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MR, REYNOLDS: And the guestion was what? Did
anybody feel == I'm sorry, I didn't ==

MR, POTTER: Let's read the guesticn back. The
witness isn't going to remember what it is now.

(Wwhereupon, the reporter read from the record,
as requested,)

THE WITNESS: We're talking September 29 to
November 30, before the first hearing was held. I really
don't remember anyone saying that. In fact, I remember the
oppusite, where they felt pretty confident that they could
meet any challenges that might come cut during the hearings.

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q . Before we g, into the rest of this deposition.
have you had any conversations with Mr. Nute concerning
this deposition today?

Y I talked to Lee about 2, 2-1/2, or 3 week§ aco,
just about the fact that we were potential witnesses. Well,
in fact, at the time I didn't knocw 1 was going to be
dercsed today. So the answer to that is no.

Q Okay. I have requested counsel and the cther

parties in the proceeding, pursuant to Rule 615 of the

-

U

Federal Rules of Procedure that no discussiocns cf the

| contert of the depositions will be had with other recplsa
who are goinc to be cderosed concerninc this matter, which

we have all mutually agreecd to, particularly as ameng yeou,

7 o SR A L - 1

Free- Jedetal ;Tg:ct::'.:. ~RC
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Mr, Nute and Mr. Wessel.
A All right.
Q You tock stenographic notes at a number of

meetings between Dow and Consumers, is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

Q Are you a trained stenographer?

A What do you mean by trained stencgrapher?

Q Have you had shorthand training?

A Yes. I took shorthand in high schoecl 20 years

ago, and I've used it ever since.. I've used it extensively

in law school, and I use it now for meetings.

I rely on it quite a bit for ncte taking and

stuff,
Q Is that Gregg shorthand?
A Yes, Gregg simplified,
Q You haven't had any cother court reporting

experience or special stenographic experience beyoné == cr
training beyond your high scheool?

A No. For a per..d there about 15 years ago I
did take scme specialized training for court reporting,
but never followed throuch con it, and really haven't
retairad much ¢£ it.

Let me clarify that. I'm talking about the

machine, nct the manual taking of notec

Q Do you feel vou can take a ve.Luatim transcrict

b d = )
=mz-;n::uﬁ.:¥axnnza 5%:
4dd NCRTH CTAPITOL STREXT 5 'S
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A I think it depends, like most pecple, it depends

on the speed, who is transcribing, and how many pecple are
talking at the same time. If you keep it down to mavke
100 words a minute I cculd take it verbatim, if it's cne
person, If you put two or three people in there talking
well above 100, I doubt very seriously if I could take it
verbatim,

Q Do you feel you have ar ; independent memory of
the meetings between Consumers and Dow Chemical which you
attended and took notes at, beyond the notes that you've
taken?

o Is your gquestion do I semember something that

isn't ‘in my notes from the meeting?

Q Yes. Are you aware of things that you know that

are not in =

A That went on during the meeting?
Q Right.
A Generally =- no, I'm not aware of anything,

because when I was takinc notes it pretty well occupied my

full time.

Q Did scmecne in Dew's lecal staff suggest to vou
that vou attempt a verbatim transcript of theose meetings?

A Or. Cow's lecal staZf?

Q Right.

A No.

; P ! ’ -~ ,7
c';::- - edezal SNepoties, Jne
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Q Did Mr,. Wessel
transcript?

A Yes.

Q Why?

RN As I testified

nad in this situaticn was
on September 29, 1976.

Mr, Wessel and

13

suggest that you attempt a verbatim;

earlier, the first involvement I

the morning of the first meeting

Mr, Nute called me into Mr. Nute's

office and said we're going intc a meeting shortly with

retained counsel for Consumers Power, and == this is Mr.

Nute talking now == and he said, since I was involved in

a meeting like a week and

that I might be called as

a half ago or so, it's possible

a witness in scme of the hearings,

and we'd like to bring somebody in on the board to be aware

of what's going on so that they might be able to step in

and cover for me if I'm called as a witness.

And that's what my role was, as eXpiaiied

Mr, Nute and Mr. Wessel,

As to why I should take verbatim notes, I

at the time they both knew that I

pelisve

had the capability to

take rhorthané and sat me down and askec me O keep nctes
af the proceedings and meetincs between cocunsel.
T &hink the conlv reascn that they expressec 0
me for taxing verbatim was to make sure that an accurats
recors of what went on durinc the meetings in preparaticn cf
ez Federal cRercriens, Jnc
4dd NORTH ZAPITOL STWLIT
WASHINGTON, 0.4 2000¢ c
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testimeny was kept.
Q Did anybody suggest that it wasn't a good idea

to take verbatim notes?

A NVo.

Q Or did you say you didn't think it was a good
idea?

A No.

Q Was therz anybedy clse present besides Mr, Wessel

and Mr. Nute and youv.self at this discussion?

A No.

Q Were these notes distributed after you €inished
taking them?

A It seems to me the first notes I took I sent a

copy of to Mr. Wessel., '7e talked about them, Let's see ...
I don't think I generaily distributed my notes, nc.

Q Wwhen the meeting commenced with Consumers Power
the first time that you were there to take notes, was
Consumers made aware of your attempt to take a verbatim
transcript of the meeting?

A You know, I really den't recall,

Q. Sad thev been made aware, would that have Seen

in vour notes?

A Quite pessibly. It should have Deen.
Q Wer2 you aware ¢ anvbedy Ircm Consumers attampiing

=0 take notes?

e Federal cResorrers, Jne tﬁ)
Add MCRTHM ZAPITOL STREXT ’5

WASHINGTONM. 2.4 1000%
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A No, not really. I don't believe that Mr., Renfrow
ané Mr. Bacon tock many notes.

Q In the course of the periocd when you were taxking
these notes did you ever hear it stated, suggested or
otherwise considered that Dow would be better off if
Consumers lost its contruction permit? Z

A Would you state that again? i

Q Did vou ever hear it stated by other Dow perscnnel
|
|

that you interacted with during this pericd of time leading

10 |

n

12

13

14

18 |

16

17

18

18

up to the hearings, suggested or in any other way considered:

that Dow would be better off if Consumers lost its
construction permit?

A I really don't recall.

Q Do you recall whether the legal staff, to ycur
knowledce, was asked t , determine whether Dow could take

a position adverse to Consumers in NRC proceedings?

A Would you rephrase the first part of that? 1I'm

confused as to who you're ==

Q Well, are you aware ==

A Rephrase the whole thing, if you would., FRestate
i€,

Q All zight., Are yvou aware cf anvene emploved Dy

Dow 2eing asked == or Mr, Wessel --

A Can we assume Mr, Wessel is in there?
Q Tes,
-
~
- ’ ~ 1 X
oHce- Feaenal cRezgotters, Jnc | L
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A Ckay.

Q -= to determine whether Dow could take a position
adverse to Consumers in the NRC proceeding?

A I really don't recall.

Q To your knowledge did the legal staff, including
Mr, Wessel, whether recuested or not, review the contract
to determine whether a position adverse to Consumers in NRC
proceedings was feasible? .

MR, POTTER: Just a second. I'm a lit.le
concerned by your use of the phrase legal staff, Are you
meaning those over with the Michigan Division? Because I'm
not certain == if vou're trying to include all the Dow
Chemical Company ==

MR, OLMSPEAD: I'm just asking whether, to his
knowledge, anyone on the Dow legal staff --

THE WITNESS: Again, I don't recall.

MR, DOTTER: Wait, please =--

THE WITNESS: That doesn't trigger anything.

MR, POTTER: Before we proceed any further with
questions along that line, may I ask vcu to please define
for the reccrd what éo you deem to be included in the lecal

staff?

the pecrle we've identified in this procceeding. 32ut Secause

cf the confusicn from time %20 time tetween DJow Micdland, and

| A - A A AR o
oz Jeaeral cNepotters, Jnc
4da NORTH SAMTOL aTREIXIT
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Dow USA, and as to who represented whom, I'm reallv talking
arsut the legal staff that had something to do with the
Dow=Consumers contract, whether or not they worked for Dow |
Midland or Dow USA during this pericd of time. And I'm
rially asking only to have Mr, Durand tell me if he knowts
the answer to the question tc his knowledge, not saying taat
it is true or it's not true that nobody did.

MR, POTTER: Well, as I say, for purposes of the
record all I'm tryving to make clear is that there were two,
three or four lawyers at any one time working over in the
Michigan == Buidling 47. When you use the word legal staff,
I'm just concerned, and I want this record to indicate that
Mr, Durand 1s” speaking for the lawyers that work over in
the main building. Lord knows, he has no idea what's

going on ==

MR, OLMSTEAD: BHe's only speaking for the lawvers |
|

with whom he had contact and would have reason to know ‘

whether they undertcok such an analysis or not.
THE WITNESS: Okay. Would you restate that
guesticn?
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:
Q Based on our discussicn as to what the lecal
staff was, did any lawver invelved with the Dew=Consumers
gteam contract, to your Xaowledce, analyze the Dow=Cconsumers

centract with view to determine whether a positicn adverse

> = I . -
orfce - Jedezal ;K«xﬂku;J%c
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to Consumers in NRC proceedings was feasible?

A I believe that one of the legal staff did review
the contract with that purpose in mind.

Q And who?

A It might have been =- I think Lee Nute undertock
an effort to review that. I guess to testify to my know=-
ledge the only thing I tememb&r is scmecne menticned the
fact that a review had been conducted and the copinion was

that we shouldn't take a contrary position during the

hearings.

Q Okay.

A As to the extent of it and everything else, I
really have no knowledge of chat. 2

Q To your knowledge, what objective did the lawyers

with whor you worked, employed by Dow, feel that they had
to accomplish in order to preserve Decw's options while
fulfilling the contract's technical terms?

Now, that phrase is one that Mr, Wessel used many
times throuchcut the hearing, that Dew had reserved it
cptions under the contract.

A This thing gets a little involved., The precblem
was, in this entire process, I think because cf the review

that came cut as to what our chlications were under the

contract to Consumers Power, we hacd the cbligaticn to susroezt

them in the hearings, .but we alsc had an cblication t3 Cow

2 J ’ e
ce- Jederal cékmxnng /R m"‘\
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-=- we at Dow had an cbligaticn to Dow to make sure that we
had energy when we needed it, whether it came from the
nuclear power plant or f£rom cur own power plants as such.
So the prcblem we ran into was supporting

Consumers Power as, I guess, the contract was interpreted. ‘
We had that obligation tco. But at the same time, protectingf
our future needs as such.

Q So would it be fair to say that there were thocse |
among the lawyers working on this issue with whom you were
familiar who felt they had a conflicting duty?

B Definitely. |

The other side of it was that we at that time

didn't feel that we were parties. The record will reflect

that we "ried to withdraw from the proceedings, and that
was cdenied. We then just assumed that we were supplying
information to Consumers to support their effort. |

Q Do you know why Dow decided to attempt to
withdraw from the proceeding? i

MR, POTTER: I'm going to have to interpcse an

Objecticn. It would have tc he based on hearsay at that
point, because I think he said his first inveclvemens was

September 23, 1976, and I'm nct reallv certain frem this

record, but I think they had withdrawn as a saztv hefors

that, I don't think he's a witness who can answer =ha=.

MR, OLMSTEAD: Well, that's true, thev had

c';:z- (:::de'.az eRegotiezs, ﬂac
idd NCRTH CAPITOL STREET ﬁ,;\\
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withdrawn from the Court of Appeals proceeding, but they
had not appeared before the Nuclear Regulatory Ccmmission
Licensing Board and nmade any statement of pesiticn to that
Board at that time.

That didn't come until later,

THE WITNESS: The moticn to withdraw from the

Court of Appeals was felt to be a withdrawal from the whole

thing, and if you go back and review the transcript that
was created in Chicage during another moticn te withdraw,
we just felt that we had been withdrawn as a party.
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q But you felt that you were going to have to
supply witnesses fcr the NRC Licensing proceeding?

A Yes, because of ocur contractual duty to support
Consumers in the hearings.

Q And that there was a certain conflict in deing
even that much?

A A conflict only in that th+ cther side of the
sticky part of the problem was that ongoing negotiitions ==
negotiaticns were continuing between Consumers and Dow,

and there was informaticn we had which was part of our

necctiating strategy as such that we felt was very sensitive,

and we really didn't want that to be discovered, and we
didn't feel we had an cbligaticn to give that to Consumers

because it would either prejudice cr coempromise our

[ 4

2% a' (.,

Lo

— 1 ] \
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negotiating position in the future.

Q And the cerollary of that, of course, would be
if you didn't give it to Consumers, vou wouldn't give it
to the Board either,

= Without a subpoena as such.

And I remember very vividly Mr, Wessel being
very concerned about having to share information that weould
compromise the negotiating strategy in the future, but at
the same time not wanting to fail to support Consumers in
the hearings because of cur ccntractual commitment.

Q One last gquestion of a general tyrve:

Was it ¢(ver suggested by anyone emploved by
Dow, either ceontract relationship cr employee relationship,
to your knowledge, that Dow might, by doing the minimum
poasibln uncder the contract achieve‘the suspension of the

contract and thus relieve itself of liability under the

contract?
A I don't remember anybody saviag that.
Q Do you still have vour stencgraphic notes cr

shorthand nctes of the September 29, 1376 meeting?

A The actual nctes?
Q Yes,
A Yes, i B8,

()

Hcw many sages are there of tacs. notes?

I tcek them cn a legal pad., I think the thine

e

1 i ’ ~ i"v")
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probably runs -- we're talking actually nctes, now, we're
not talking about the typed finished copy as such ==

Q Right.

A T think it was a full legal pad, probably on cne
side and started down several pages of the reverse side,
which condenses down == it condensed down to 19 or 20

typewritten pages.
Q Did you have the typewritten stencgraphic notes

of the 9-29 meeting typed up verbatim?

A Verbatim of what I had, or verbatim of ==
Q Right, as you tock them.
2 No, as I stated, in the final copy what I did, I

looked through =- for the most part it was verbatim, but
generally it tends to take on a summary of what went on.

Q The notes that were put in in the record of the
September 29 meeting as Attachment G to Consumers motion for
summary disposition in this latest round of proceedings, is
19 pages long. Is that the only copy of those ncoctes that
you had typced up?

A It seems =c me I typred ~=- and this was in
reference to me trying to see if I captured everything
versatim == I went through my notes and ¢t . e« Let's
see, T typed up a copy that ran mayvbe mcre pages == -G, 2
svved up those notes and gave them to Mr, Wessel Zfor hinm

TS

to get an idea as to whetier or nct, since, (1) I was new

e Federal <<en 7 A
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to it, and I didn't really understand what was going on.

did have stencgraphic ability, but I wasan't == in fact, I

23

T |

knew at the time I couldn't take notes verbatim from the way

the thing turned into,

the room, everybody talking back and forth.

Q

Do you still have a copy of the notes that you

furnished to Mr, Wessel?

A

Q

A

Do I? Yes.

I'éd 1ike a copy.

QOr do I?

I'll have to check.

As I said before, I don't know if that's the

first == if that's the same as my finished.

check.

Q

A

Q

A

I can refresh your memory here in just a moment.

Mr, Wessel wrote you a letter ==

Yes,

I'éd have to

I don't know right offhand where it is,

It seems to me that letter, together with the

attachment, was mace a part

1976,

Q

Wrat I have is a

(Cecumenz handed

cf the docume-"s.

We had like four or five pecple in

letter to ycu dated Cctober S,

to the witness.,)

Right.

MR, CHARNCTE Cctober
MR, CLMSTEAD: OCctober
MR, CHARNCFT: Okay.

e ederal cRemcriens,

Jne.
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BY MR. OLMSTEAD:

And it refers in :here to 26 pages of typed notes.

Now, as near as I can determine == I may be

wrong == but I don't think we've been furnished a copy of

the 26-page version.

A

Q
along, and

version.

Q

versicn of

I thought you had.
As you know, I haven't been in this case all

that . what I can't find. I have the l9-page

Do you have a copy of the 26-page version?
MR, CHARNOFF: No.

THE WITNESS: 1Is there one there?

MR, POTTER: Let's go off the record.
(Discussion cff the record.)

MR, OLMSTEAD: 3ack on the record.

BY MR, OILMSTEAD:

I think we've ascertained that there's another

tte September 29, 1376 rnotes, which is in mcre

of a verbatim form, or an attempt to be verbatin :iorm,

A

and I said

Yes, But your question was édo I still have that,

no, I'é have £2 go back and check. Anéd I was

under the assumption that it was paxt of the recorz:.

evervehing

As far as I know, it's still in my £ile, because

-

' . a —s n .
I created in this effor: I've never Zdestrcoved.

S0 it sheuld be there.

= ’ - .
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Q But if it's not there, your stcencgraphic notes

are there?

A Ves.

Q And they could he ==

A Yes,

Q Mow, in this 10-5-76 letter he references a

meeting of September 30, I assume that he was referring to
the September 29 meeting?

A Yes. We had no meeting on Sertember 30.

Q Okavy.

Now, this may be an unfair questicn, and I'll
hold it if it is, But since there was a more elaborate
versicn which Mr, Wessel found to be unsatisfactory for
the purposyvs that he had in mind == and /o1 % ask you what
those are at the moment == do you recall e-:_.:tially what
you took out of the memorandum to files that you ultimately
wrote that was in the longer version?

A What I did, as I stated earlier, was summarized
the conversations so that the final copy in a sense would
make sense.

You knew, if your go back tc my stencgraphic notes
and take down evervthing I took and just put it in there,

a perscn would have trouble I think makinc sense ocut ¢f
scme of it, because of the way it jumped zack ané foz=h,

together with my inexperience in that first meeting as such,

.t 4 ? 77 .
:ﬁkbulauam oRepotiers, J/ne s o\
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Q Now, in that letter Mr, Wessel says to you
there's really no way in which they can be modified to do
what we had hoped to,

Do you know what he meant by modified?

A I really don't. I may have at the time, I don't
recall now, Mr, Wessel may remember.

Q Do you know what it was that he had hoped?

A ¥hat he had hoped to accomplish was a verbatim
record of the meetings, and verbatim to me, and possibly to
most people if they look .he definition up, is you capture
everything that is said in that room, much like our court

reporter is doing teday.

And I think in going throcugh there, he understocd

that I wasn't really capable of doing that, for several

reascns. And he didn't want to mislead people into thinking

that I had done that.
Q Okay.

In the September 29 memorandum to files, attach-
ment 3 to Consumers summary disposition letters, discussing
that meeting new for a minute did you attené the entire
wewetine cn that date?

A Dc you mean was I there everv seccnd that =he
Teeting was goiiz on?

-~

Q Well, wers vou thers

LN

er 99 pezcent of {s?

A Procabl 'y, When I took == I zhink ac times,

o=y »
cﬁ%e-;%énnx.:QZmnmna Tne
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because of the nature of the meeting, and peopls could get

up and leave, get up maybe for a treak, phone call or

whatever.

Q

your shorthand notes, look at your meme to files and be

able to determine which porticns of the meeting you were

Would it be possible for ycu to, after reviewing

not present at?

A

a high percentage of the time I was there.

No, it wouldn't be. I think probably 395, 96 ==

But I did at

times leave the room, vou know, for whataver reascn.

Q

Okay .

If you'll lock at those now, on page 3, the last

paragraph ==

A

- (e » 0

(&)

kg

myself?

)

(9]

You're talkinq of the ==

The September 29 memcrandum to files.
Page 37

Right.

What paragraph?

Last paragraph on that page.

All right. Would vou like me to read it %o

If vou wish.
(Viitness reading deccuments.)

The Iirst sentence there savs:

*Milt stated at this peint Dow is nes srecared

Hce- Feceral cRemoriers, Une
ddd NORTH SAMTCOL STREIT
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30
to give anyone infosmation on wunal went on during the
proceedings.”

What proceedings is he referring to?
A I think I'd be guessing. I really don't

remember,

I think if you read the rest of the paragraph ...

no, I'd hate to assume that's what it meant., The rest of
the paragraph deals with, as I stated earlier, the delicacy
of the ongoing negotiations and stuff,

Whether or not he meant by proceedings the
previous negotiations or whatever, I really couldn't tell
you.

Q Okay .

Going to page 6 of that memorandum, here we have
a discussion by Rex Renfrow. Second paragraph.

A "Rex stated..."?

Q Right.

If you read hat on through the end of the pacge
and over to the first t/o lines of page 7 =-

A Ckay.

Q Now, if I understand ycur answers to scme cf my
more ceneral cuesticns and veur last resceonse, essentiallv
there was concern abcut prejudicing the necotiatine sositicn
of Consumers and Cow in the revised negotiaticns con the

nuclear steam zontract, while at the same time fulfillinc

ez Federal Remoriers, Une
Add NORATH ZAPITOL STREIT

WASHINGTSON, 2.4 20001
(202 34TITOO
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contractual obligations that then existed in the NRC proceed-

ings.
A 7o support Consumers,
Q 1o suppert Consumers.,
A Yes.
Q So this discussion here deals with that issue in

varying degrees, as I understand it, 1Is that correct?
A That's my understanding ¢~ it, ves,
Q Ckay.
Then the next to the last sentence con that pace,
it says:
*Milt pointed cut that if Dcw was regquested to
go further they could run into problem-,”
Go further than w§at?
A That, there again, is a reference to going
further into information, even with ongoing necotiations.
To get a bettex handle on this Milt ' as agreeable to give
them information that stayed awav from that kinéd of informa-
tion.
Q But he did not want to provide to the NRC
Licensing acﬁzd information concerning the ongeing necotiati
is that correct?

2 Ne. He didn't want ¢ cgive Consumers Power +<he

»; Ané by noct giving == he was afraid if he gave it

— [} . r;
crkz-uzmnuz.:eaxxnnm Tne
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to the NRC that Consumers Power would get it, Or ==

A Well, he was concerned that if Myrcn Cherry asked
for it and it was a matter of discovery, then it would get
cut and Dow would be at a disadvantage because now Consumers
Power has their information and Dow doesn't have Consumers
Power's information, 2li 2% it pertaining to ongoing
negotiations.

Q Okay.

I'd like to go to the third paragraph on page

9.

A If I may clarify scmething in response to your
question, Milt never had a problem with sharing information
with the NRC or the Licensing Board if it were done properly

in terms of a subpcena, or whatever.

Q But he wanted the informaticn to be subpoenaed?
A Yes, He was not going to give it freely.

Q He didn't want it volunteered?

A Right. The information that was sensitive in

his eyes, that might have had an impact on future negctia-

ticns.,
Page 3?
' Q Yes, and the tnizd garagrach.
i
A b sht., (Witness reviewing deccument.)

MR, OLMSTEAD: Would you show Rim a cogy ¢f I

believe it's Lee Nute's notes 2f the same dase., I weull

- i
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show him mine, but ==

MR, POTTER: I'd rather you'd show him yours,
because he's got the copy, and ycu're asking the questions,
I don't know what you're referring to. So I think if you
could show him yours ==

MR, OLMSTEAD: Okay.

(Document handed to the witness.)

BY MR. OLMSTEAD:

Q Read paragraph D, page 2, of Mr. Nute's notes.
A This is notes of the same date, 9-297
Q Yes., 9=29-7¢, And if you'll look over on page

3 == no, I'm referring to page 2, item D, just before Roman
numeral III, Roman numeral II.D.

hY Okay.

Q Would that reference in the Nute notes be the
same as the reference in your expanded notes that I pointed
out to you at page 9?

A It would be difficult for me to say yes cn that,
The subject seems to be the s2~- in that, ycu know, it
deals with informatiocn abcut negetiations.

As T said, the other side c¢f the rock that we

were faced up against was the centractual legzl oblizatic-n

£ supror:t Consumers, veonu knew, with cur informaticn. Whlich

is to sav that if thoy asked us for informaticn that we Rac,

that they felt thev needed for the hearing, and tlat
e iRl o ~ ‘
otz o ommmal ~Flesotizzs, Tne ’2’\_,‘-1)
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particular piece 3f information caused them to lose == I

mean give them difficulty in the hearing, would Consumers

come back at a later date and give us problems because we

supplied information.

So taking the preceding gquestion, which was,

-
-

recognize, some time aco, where you said that Mr, Wessel

was concerned about putting the negotiating pesition before

the Board without a subpocena =-

A

Q

Nute's and in your notes, would it be == do you want to look

Yes,

-= and this discussion, as represented in Mr,

at #ir. Nute's again?

A

Q

Go ahead.

== would it be fair to conclude tha. Dow was

urging Consumers to put less information with regarsd to

the ongeing contract negotiations in the testimony than

Ccnsumers, at least at this date, was inclined to put in?

A

For one thing, I think Milt felt that a lot of

the information concerning ongeing negotiations was really

irrelevant,

in that that had tc do with negotiations that

weren't really part of the hearing that we

were at,

Prom that standpoint we felt that oeossisly less

information would protect cur s¢sition in

necgetiations.,

~
-

-~
v.‘_‘

. .-
-

All zight. O©On page l) of vour notas == and
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not going to try to pull them all out myself, but I'd also

like you to refer to == page 10, the first paragraph.

A The £irst full paragraph?

Q The one that starts, "It is stated that...”

A Okay.

Q Page 15, Here I believe Mr, "emple was resent,
A 15?

Q Yes. And that's the third paragraph. I'm

counting each oFf those lines on page 15 as a paragraph, so
it's the first big paragraph.
A *Milt to’d Joe..."
Q Right. And then on your 11l-1l-76 notes, pace 3,
last paragraph =--
A Okay.
Q And in your 1l=15=76 notes ==
MR, POTTER: What was the reference in the 1l1l-1?
MR, OIMSTEAD: Page 3, last paragraph.

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q 11-15, last pazagrarh ==

A Wait a minute., 1ll-l15, page what?

Q Page 1, last paracragh.

A FLilcuss’cn to see whether or not Dow was

initiating anvy legal action?”

Q Right,
New, i1 all cf :hcse raracrachs Mr, Wessel seems
[ qr 4 ! ” e -
Hece- Federal cRezorters, Jnc AR
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to be indicating that it is feasible for Dow to sue
Consumers.

MR, POTTER: 1If you're goinq te inquire about
these paragraphs, I want him to take time to read the
pi:aqraphs.

MR, OLMSTEAD: I thought he had just read them.

THE WITNESS: Oh, no. I was just trying to find

them.
MR, OLMSTEAD: All right., Please read them.
(Witness reviewing documents.)
THE WITNESS: Okay.
BY MR. OLMSTEAD:
Q All right. As I read those statement all along,

althouch those are three different days at four different
places, Mr. Wessel was making it clear that Dow felt they
had a cause of action for a breach of contract against
Consumers Power.

Do you think that's a fair reading of those

references?

A He felt there was a possibility, is my interpreta-

tien.

0

Ané he, in fact, was saying we may have to sue
you?

A Yes.,

L8]

wWould that be a threac?

/ == ” { -
Hce- Fezeral cRepcriezs, nc
“hd MCRTH CAPTTOL STRELT ) {‘\,b
WASHINGTSN, 2.5 20001 ¢ e

202) 3473700 *,) b '



10

1

12

13

14

18

16 |

17 |

18

37

A A threat?

MR, POTTER: I'm going to object. If he communi-

cated the informaticn, Mr. Durand can certainly answer ves
or no, whether such a statement was made. Now, whether it

was a threit or something is in the eyes of the teholder,

and T don't think he's the one that can answer that questicn. |

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q Was Dow, to vour knowledge, considering suing
Consumers on the contract?

A I have nc knowledge of that.

Q Had anvbody that you were aware of prepared any
legal papers for filing of breach of contract?

A No cne trat I was aware of.

Q Okay.

I want to go back now to the 11-29 notes. I
think it's page 10.

MR, CHARNOFF: 11l=29 or 9=-29?

MR, OLMSTEAD: 9=~29, I'm sorry. Pace 10, the
middle of the large paragraph, the middle paragraph there,
where it says, "Rex then saidi he would like to get in the
Michigan and Dow US reviews and why these decisions were
reached.”

PTEE WITNESS: Riche.,

8Y MR, CLMSTEAD:

(8

T den's really cet a flaver Ircm your notes that

«

po— ! ’ -
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they ever got into that during this discussion.

A During that day?

Q Yes.

A They may not have. They got into it I think
later.

Q Okay. I just wondered if there was mcre dis~

cussion on that day, particularly by Dow personnel, concern-
ing the Michigan Division vs the Dow corporate pesition.

A I1'd say if it's not in my notes anéd my summaries
of such, no, they didn't.

Q Okay.
Page 1ll.
Same notes?
Same notes.

Okay.

0 » 0O »

Second paracraph, second sentence. It says:

*Milt pointed out that Jce has a great reluctance

to say anything."®
& Yes.
Q what reluctance did Jce Temple have?

MR. POTTER: Again, I'm going to have &tc inter-
pose an cbjection, I think it's hearsav at this poine,
mecause as I read that statement =-

MR, OLMSTEAD: All these nctes are nearsav.

MR, POTTESR: Yo they're nct. He can state whetler

csz-;ﬂmezu cKepoeties, ﬁ%c h‘(%
Y
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or not Joe Temple was present. But I don't think Joe Temple
was present during this time of the meeting, and vou're
asking him to tell you what Milt Wessel meant when he said
what Joe Temple said, and I den't think that's competent.

MR, OLMSTEAD: 1I'm asking him if there was a
further discussion of just what this reluctance was that
Milt says Joe Temple has at this meeting.

THE WITNESS: I think they got intos it later,

| within either this == within these notes as such.

BY MR, OIMSTEAD:

Q Were you present at any conversations where Jce
Temple stated th«u reluctance to testify on behalf of Dow

regarding this matter?

A I think I rewember Joe Temple saying that, you

s | know, if there's any way he could get out of it, he would,

But he expressed a reason at that time that == I think he
just didn'; want == you know, if he didn't have to testify,
it would ha'rs been just fine, because ¢f his == I think, just
like a lot of other pecple =- just having to get up and
testify.

Q Would you say that lawvers for Consumers mi

0
T
ot

have cctten the impressicn that Jce Temple was not a willinc
witness?
MR. POTTE

MR, TToR: Acain, I thirk vou'wve got to asx

Censumers' lawvers that questicn., I don't see hew he can

- ‘. ] ”, - 2 lq /
Srce. Jedetar SRepetiets, ne ﬂ¢3q
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answer the guestion.
B8Y MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q Cid you get an impressicn that Joe Teaple was not
a willing witness?

A I think it goes back to the answer I just gave
you. When we f£irst got into the testimeny, talking to Jce
Temple about it, I got the impressicn initially that the
reluctance was there because it was just == you know,
testifying was not distasteful, but it was scmething that
pecple don't normally like to go through,

That was the initial impression I got. But as
we got more into preparing him and stuff, it tecame apparent
that he knew what Le was talking about., I can recall that
his feeling about his reluctance wasn't there anymore as
such,

Q But at this particular time, had there been any
discussions with Joe Temple, to ycur knowledge, leadi;g up
to this meeting? I mean cbvicusly Milt Wessel must have
talked to Joe Temple, but were you aware of any conversations
between lawyers and Jce Temple before this aeeting?

A No. I den't recall.

Q Do vou remember whether Mr, Temple had been
teld that if he testified as to his true feelings on the

* " 1 - & - - . - . -
contracs =hat Dew could ze sued for not supserting Consumers”

- .- —

A I den't recall that he was told that,
— s * / -~ ~1 \
cﬁkz-.nwrun ci?mnmna “ne )  3
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Q He wasn't told that, to your knowledge?

A Not that I can recall.

Q On page 13, seconé paracragh.

A Same meeting?

Q Right. The last sentence of the second paragraph, |

*Judd pointed cut that he wanted to know why Joe
had made the statements he made to the Press Club,"
And then there are no further notes. Nobody
responded to that request, or...?

R I think if you read the succeeding paragraph =--

Q In other words, Milt, rather than get into the
statements that he made at the Press Club, essentially
raised cbjections to that line of testimony being even
included in Temple's presentation?

A Yes, I think it goes to Milt wanting to keep Judd
Bacon out of the area of either personal feelings that had
no relevance to what we were deing, or information that was
sensitive to ongoing negotiaticns.

Q Okay, on page 14, in the last paragraph, third
sentence, where it states:

*Milt said that Judd mav be present on the
general stuff, but on the cross-exam stuff he should

not be cresent.”

Anc then later I guess, when they discussed wish
* - 1 12 P o h - 3 2
Jvoe Temple, on page l3, that Judd 3Bacon is nc longer thers?

7 | c— ’ , -~
&yce- Jeaezal oXKeportets, e
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Is that correct?
A I believe Judd Baccn was there until we get %o a

point...let's see ...

Q He's there on page 127

A | Yes, I think he's there.

Q He never left?

A Yes, I assume he never left., Looking at that

statement that vou pointed out, abcut the cross-exam stuff,
I can assume that thevy never got intoc the cross-exam stuff,
The sgituation there was that Milt felt that if
we got into sensitive stuff with Joe Temple, it was okay if
Rex and Dave -- or Rex at this point, I think == heard it,
but he didn't want Judd hearing any of this stuff, So they
cane out with this little agreement amongst them == Rex and
Judd d4id -- that whenever thev got into this sensitive stuff
Judd would be asked to leave the room.
I think you'll see ai example of that at one of
the later meetincs,
Q Okay.
A In fact, it coes even further, I think a
orotective crder was drafted and signed by Dave Rosso.
2 So the purpese cf having Judd 3acen leave tle
rocm Was mOre the f2ar that insiZe informaticn relating o
Sew Chemical would ené ur in the hands <f Consumers “ower,

rather than for anvy cther reascn?

p— ] . /
ez Federal cReportens, Tnc
4hd NCRTM TASITOL STREET "
WASHINGTON, 3.8, 20001 bb
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A Precisaely.
Q Did Jiéd Bacon leave the room during other

meetings that you were at and tock stenographic notes?

A Was he asked to leave the riom, or did he leave
the room?

Q Either cne.

A I know he left the rocm at times, to ==

Q Did you continue to take notes when he left the
room?

A Yes, if the meeting went on. In fact, I know he

was as:ied to leave the room at one «f the subseguent
meetiags, because they got into some personal feelings.

MR, POTTER: Excuse me. I think you were
interrupted when you started to answer, Were there times
when Mr. Bacon left the rocm of his own wvelition?

THE WITNESS: Yes, just like I said earlier,
pecple got up and left, whether they wanted to go to the
bathroem or take phone calls, or whatever.

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

g To clarify what I am concerned abcut, in thcse
instances where ycu were concerned about informaticn related
#a Consumers Power == scr= cf a proprietary or insider
nature == ané thers2fcocre wanted Judd Bacen ot
in those instances 4.4 you cent

A Yes.

x - q “

cHce- Feaeral cResorters, Unc ~
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Q On page 15 ==
A I think if I may, just to clarify the record,
I can show you an instance of th#: if you're interested,
when he left the room and they continued talking. My notes
reflect that, as such. Lock on pace & cf the notes of
10-1", page 8, about half way down:
"Lee asked Judd Bacon to leave the room."
Mr, Wessel proceeded to relate to Dave how Joe felt about
certain things, and we got precisely intu all the pr. ’lems,
and it's outlined for you what the varicus problems we. e,
A lot of it is critical to Consumers Power,
Q I think I'll Lave a gquestion asout that when we
get there. |
You have clarified it for me.
ﬁage 15 of the 9-29 notes, Joe Temple is now
present and down at the bottom of the page, the last para-
graph, in the middle of that paragraph, Joce asked if the
Hearing Bocard would let cther parties get into this, Joe's
serscnal views, because of its relevance.
Because I assume he'd been advised that i= wasn's
relevant, since that was Mr, Wessel's view at that sime.
"Milt then read the prefacinc statement that 1e
hacd prevared for Jce's use and recital sefore the Zcard,
copy attached."

It may just te my errcr, but I don't have a coov

ez Feaenal c<escriers, ne '11 N
ddd MORTH SAMTOL STREXYT { f L
WASHINGTON, J.& 20001 1) b )
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of that.

B

Do you all have a copy of that?

MR, CHARNOFF: I don't.

MR. POTTER: I think we'd better mark it and ¢

it in the r

it.

record, I j

Q

this is it?

ecord 1t this peint iZ there's any doubt about

MR, ZAMARIN: I have a copY.

MR. OLMSTEAD: I'm not saying it's not in tais
ust can't find it.

MR, POTTER: Bear with me just a minute.
(Pause.’

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Let me give you this document and ask you if

(Document hanaed to the witness.)

Is this the statement?

MR, OLMSTEAD: 1I've handed =--

THE WITNESS: Yes, that's the statement.

MR, OLMSTEAD: Let the record show that the

5

et

statement referred to is Exhibit CC of Midland Intervencrs

Exhibit Number 60,

3Y MR, CLMSTEAD:

- 1

b | . -
on pace 17, the end of the seccnd 3¢TaCTIATA,

seconé sentence frcm the end, it says:

"Rex pointed ocut that ne would ratlers nave CZcw

ez Feaeral Reperiens, Jnc
4dd NCRTH CTAPTOL STREXT y
WASHINGTON, 2.2 210001 G £
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err on the side of tco much in their outline rather than not

encugh.,”
Is it your opinion that Dow accommodated this
request?
A To tell vou the truth, there were about 14

diZferent outlines running through this, I'd have to review
this thing to get a full flaver of what ocutline you're
talking about, and then try to remember how much we gave
them,

So maybe in answering your gquestion == I don't
really recall,

Q Did you participate or otherwise make any comments
during the course of this meeting, other than take notes?

A Genersally not.

Q Following the September 29, 13976 meeting with
Consumers Power legal personnel, did you attend any other
meetings with Dow personnel concerning that meeting?

A It seems to me I did., I'm remembering my meetings
now, It seems to me we put together a draft cf scme
tastimony. I think it had to do with this outline that Rex
Renfrow came back with,

Back con cace § there's a reference 2 Rex handing

Q Pid you wozk cn the preparation ¢f cestimeny =¢

111 4 134 ] - 4 3 y 4
€ill in that cutline in preparation for the next meeting?

p — y # .
etz Fedenal ;ngnuzg J%c -
Add NTATHY SAPTOL STREXT 1! b
WASHINGTEN, 3.8 20001 o8 V‘C)
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A T think about the only thing I worked on in that

outline was just the front part of the data relating ¢o

Joe's Lackground and history and stuff,

recall working on.

That's about all I

Q Not the substance of the contract or the Midland

Division position, or ==

A No.

Q You've already testified that you were working

with Lee Nute, and to a lesser extent with other attoineys

who were involved a% this particular time.

any other communications or conversations with other Dow

Did you have

perscnnel in preparation or anticipation for the I ture

meetings at which ycu wer=z present?

A Legal or ctherwise?

Q Right.

LA I really don't recall,

Q Okay. Geing back to the letter that Mr, Wessel

sent you cf October 5, 1976, he states you ==

" eescoOuldn't catch all the references,"

What references do you think he was referring

A Well, my interpretation ¢f tha

there were refarences tc matters that if ¢

in the thing and knew about it it wouléd h
meaning %2 a cer-scn., Anc we talked abcut

was really talking about is (l) siace vecu

— ! #
cHce- Federal Reporters, Jnc
Aad NCRTH CAPTOL STREIET
WASHINGTEN, 2.4 20001
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didn't really understand what was going on, together with
the fact tiat so many things were going on, you undoubtedly
missed scme stuff,
Q Okay.
You testified earlier that you had taken shorthand
since you were in high schecol, and hadn't kept up.
Forgetting this case for the moment, normally
when you take notes if you don'%t really appreciate what's
going on but later develcp the information to appreciate it,
do you usually find that your notes are adequ te to satisfy
your need £o deal in the substance of a natter?
A I really don't understand your gquestion.
. Q Well, T assume that if one said you didn't catch

all the references that one could analogize to other

situvaticns where ynu weren't as familiar as you might
otherwise be at scme later time about the infcr?a lon that
you were trying to take notes on -- say a law schocl class
where you hadn't read the day's assignments, or something
of that nature,

Have you found in the past that when vcou use your
shorthand capability and take notes in those kinds of
situations, and then later ccme >back with cother kncwledce,
do vou find your nctes generally acdecuate to understand the
substance ¢cf wha’'s going on?

A Yes. 72ut that derends on what was ¢gning cn when

ez Fezeral c<emerters, ne
- b - - -

hd NORTN ZAPITEL STREXT ( %
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I was taking the notes., If I'm sitting in a class situation

and there's a professor talking and I maybe missed a
reference as such, but, 2as you say, ccme back later with
some kncwledge it may make sense.,

But that generally gces tc how complete the
record was when I first put it down.

Q Well, having sat through a number of meetings
now with Consumers Power, and being invelved to the extent
that you have, in hindsight do you go back and £ind your
notes fully developed and meaningful?

MR, POTTER: Which notes ar=s you talking about,

all of them?

MR, OIMSTEAD: The notes he too.. of this Scptember’

29 meeting.

THE WITNESS: Yes. I did go back and they
started making sense.

Fer instance, a reference to 3lack & Veatch., I
didn't even know how to spell ‘¢, let alcne what it was.
But as I got more into the meetings and stuff it became
apparent as tc what that kind of data was, and if I went

back intc my notes == if we're talking about 2id I under-

stand better after I went back, Juite pessitly. Once acain,

cependinc on what I was able %c put dcwn.

BY MR, CLMSTEAD:

0

Do you still feel it's a £ull anéd accurate

— » J
oHce- Federal cRepcortess, Une q'lq
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summary of that meeting?

Y You said full and accurate summary?

Q Right. I was trying to -« let me use your words.

~ I jJust used tche word “"accurate."

Q It's an accurate summary? Do you still feel that
is? |

A I still believe it's an accurate summary. T

think keeping in mind that == yves, I still believe it's

an accurate summary, |

Q Okay.

On page 2 of Milt's letter ~f Ocvober S5 that

attaches a memcrandum to the files, which was his effort
to summarize this reeting of which we have your notes, he
puts down at the er . of this second paragraph a statement

to the effect that:

"Consumers rejected the suggesticn that Temple's

testimony

MR,

MK,

summary of the

letter to Cave
meeting,

=

MR.

Discussicn ocff ¢

POTTER:
CLMSTEAD:

meeting cf September 29, Attached to !

REYNOLDS:

be reduced to writing as direct.”

Where are ycu?

I'm on th2 second page of

is a tweepaga memcrandum summarizing thas

- 1
Lat's go off

3\
& recors.,)

MR, OIMSTEAD: Back on the recovd.
cJ = . .__/? 71 0 (\
ree- JedeTal o/Nepotiess, nc s ;v
44a NOATH CAMTOL STRETT - ‘\\\ -
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BY MR. OLMSTEAD:
Q On page 2 of Mr, Wessel's summary of the Septen-
ber 29, 1976 meeting he notes:
"Consumers rejected the suggestion ._aat Temple's
testimony be reduced to writing as d_rect."
Was that yocur understanding?
(Pause.)
The next gquestion, obvicusly, is where is that
in your notes? And that is the segment of thc ..otes we
were talking about earlier, the summary that Milt prepared?

(Pause.)

That's a compound question; if you want to object

we'll take it one section at a time,

MR, POTTER: That's all right, if the questicn
is understandable to anycne else.

THE WITNESS: All right. Do you want me to
answer the first gquestion?

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q All right., I'm asking if that was vour under-
standing cof the discussicns that toock place regardinc the
Temple testimony on September 29,

MR, PCTTZR: Belcre he answers that zuestion

want him tc read from pace 1 to the end o

n
1
5
m
)
I\
(
o
O
'
4
]
n

nctes ¢ the 3-29 meeting., He hasn't dcne iz vet

MR, QIMSTEAD: I recguested that that -e done.

/ (~ ] . -
Hcz- Fedeal cRencrtens, Une o (.'\\
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MR. POTTER: If your gquestion is, does that
appear in his notes, he's going to have to read his notes
to see if it's in them,

THE WITNESS: Frankly, I cannot ==

BY MR. CLMSTEAD:

Q My question at the moment is whether that
accurately reflects his understanding.

MR, POTTER: Which he can only understand by
reading his notes to refresh his recollection. That's the
point I'm trying to make.

THE WITNESS: Yes. Frankly, I couldn't tell you
as to whether or not Milt's summary of the meeting is an
accurate summary of what went on in relation to what I put
down. I really couldn't tell you unless I went back through
and é;und the same reference,

We're dealing with 19 pages of notes, condensed
down to a page and a half,

8Y MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q And he condensed that from 26 pages of nctes?
A No.
Q Ze had vour 26~pace ==

MR, POTTER: Walit a minute. 1I'm goinc %o objecs,
if vou're characterizing ncw taat Mr, Wissel's nctes ar-s
scmencw prepared tased cn Mr, Curandé's -

MR, OLMSTEAD: Let me reparase it.

‘ Fedesal <R 7 L
ez Fedezal cReperters, Jre - o
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3Y MR. OLMSTEAD:
Q He had vour 26=-page typewritten notes at the

time he prepared that memcrandum,

MR, POTTER: We don't know that, either,

MR, OLMSTEAD: He said so in his cover letter,
of the same date.

MR, POTTER: Okay. I stand corrected.

THE WITNESS: He said in the third paragraph:

*I sucgest we scrap the effort and try to prepare
a valid summary of the important pcints which were macde."*
My effort is enclosed.”

Now, whether or not he toQk ==

MR, POTTER: Excuse me, Read those two paragraphs

together. There's nothing in there that says that Mr,
Wessel prepared his notes based on Mr, Durand's Aotes. Ke E
said he had them., I don't see anything in the cover letter
that stands for the propositicn that you're making, Bill. T
That is, that Mr, Wessel had Mr, Durand's notes a2t the time
he prepared his cwn. Maybe that's the censtruction you
make of it, but I den't think we can ask Mr, Duranc to
assume that,
BY MR, OCLMSTEAD:
) Well, will you acree with me that his summary
of that meeting is dated con the same cdate as the cover
latter, rejecting vour 26-pace attempt at verbatin notes?
Hee Federal cReporters, nc ~ ‘»-\)5
ihs NORTH ZASITOL STREXT o [

WASHINGTON, 2.5 20001 ")‘{ \ J
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A The <dates are the same, ves. Whether or not
that --
Q So that at least at the time that do ument was

tyred he had your 26-page effort to refer to if he wished to?

A If he wished to.
Q Whetier he did or not we can ask Mr. Wessel.
A Yes. I couldn't answer that guestion.

Q Qkay.
Now, going back to the paragraph on page 2, if
I have to wait for you to read all ynur notes, I will.

MR. POTTER: Well, I'm just telling the witness

I'm advising him not to answer that question without reading

the notes.

MR. OLMSTEAD: All right., Then I suggest we take

a five-minute break while ==
MR, REYNOLDS: Well, wait == what's the guestion?
THE WITNESS: Just let me know what I'm supposed
to do, first.
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q I'm asking, as ¢o the paracrach that I read sc
ycu, or asked you to rzed, where he refers %o Consumers
rejecting the suggestisn that Temple's testinmcny be reduced
to writing a:s direc: testimony, =-

A I den't see "direct testimeny."

Q Well, reduced to writing.
e Federal cResctiers, Jne . L
4ed NCRTH ZAPITOL STRELT 4D
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A It says reduced to writineg.
Q And offered in evidence at the beginning of the
session, subject to cross-examination.

I'm asking you, was that your understanding of
the discussion of the Temple testimony at the meeting of
September 297

MR, POTTER: And I'm advising the witness to
read his notes of that meeting to £ind out whether it's
in there or not.

THE WITNESS: I would have to go through my
notes, because I couldn't answar your cuestion the way you
phrased it. I r2ally couldn't. I'm wondering even if my
notes will . . .

MR, REYNOLDS: Let' ~ off the record for a
minute.,

(Discussicon off the re=ord.)

MR, OLMSTEAD: Let's take a five-mi.. te recess.

(Recess,)

MR, OLMSTEAD: We're back on the reccrd.

MR, POTTER: We have a guesticn pending, See if
you can answer the question as it stands ncw. If vou can's

er if vou need scmething else, then let's

)

et 4

o

c

o
ot

.
Maybe we coulld have the court recorter read back
the cuestion,
MR, OLMSTEAD: I can rereat the guestiocn.
:- I/ ’
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We're back from a recess and Mr., Durand has

reviewing his notes ¢f the September 29, 197

that correct?
THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q The question I was asking, which necessitated the

£inished

S5é

neeting, iz

review, referred to a paragraph on page 2 of Mr, Wessel's

Octoper 5, 1976 attempt at a summary of the September 29

meeting, where he notes that Consumers had rejected the

suggestion that Temple's testimony be reduced to writing «-

and I put in the words, "as direct." I asked whether that

was your understanding based on your recollection, whether

through your notes or otherwise of the September 25 nieting.

kS My recollection, after reviewing the notes, is

that in the first part c¢f the meeting we handed a Jraft of =--

I believe it was in affidavit form == of Joe Temple's ==

of a draft of his testimony, and we gave it to Mr. Renfrow,

ard ==

Q You used the word "affidavit" and then you used

the word "testimeny,” and ¢t _-cuchcut these nctaes the two

terms are used for twe different documents.

asocut one document or two?

A I need a couple 9f documents &£o
Q Ckav.
A I need a ccopy of the draft that

” - ! . -~ 1
oHce- Teaeral cRepotters, Une
Add NOATH CAPYTTL STRZET
WASHINGTON, 2.5, 20001
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Rex Renfrow and Judd Z2acen on that morning, the 29th, which

was a draft in response to a telepuone conversation that

Judd Bacon had had with Milt Wessel before that.

Q

Okay. I show you Exhibit 8A of Midland Interven-

ors Exhibit 60, and ask you if that's the testimony you're

referring ton?

A

Q

Pause,)

The document has at the top of it, incidentally,

"Draft MRW." I assume that means Milt Wessel?

A

Q

A

1 can assume it does.
Lo you know =-

Before I answer that, let me look back throucgh it

just a second,

(Pause.)

Do you have a copy of a letter =-- let's see ., . .

before I answer that gquestion, ==

Q

Well, excusec me., I had a gquesticn asking whether

you knew whether this was drafted by Mr, We:r 1, I believe

it says MRW,

A

Before I can answer that cuestion I need a lester.

Not a letter. It's a memo to the file that Milt prevared

after we

listed the items ¢!

I want to

had a cenversation with Judd Sacen, wherein he

o

at Judd had asked him to grecare, aAnd

see if this draft is responsive toc that lette:.

c:kz-:izkzﬂ':?€$m<&1a Tne. ‘.
4da NCRTH TAPITSL STREET ‘)b J
WASHINGTON, «.& 20001
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(Discussion off the record.)

MR, OLMSTEAD: Back on the record.

I think for purposes of the record I ought to
identify the fact that I've handed the witness a memorandum
to L. F. Nute from M, R, Wessel dated September 28, 1976,
re: a telephone conversation with Judd Baceon.

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q Is that the document you ..quested?
A No.

MR, POTTER: O0Off the record again.

(Discussion off the record.)

MR, OLMSTEAD: Back on the record.

Let the record show the witness answered no to
the September 28 memorandum, and is now looking at a memor=-
andum to L. F. Nute from M. R, Wessel dated September 27,
1976, re: Conversation with Judd Bacon.

BY MR, 0! .LSTEAD:

Q Is that the memorandum you recquested?
A les.,

(Witness reviewing document.)

Rex handed to Milt on September 2%, which is an outline of
the items that , . .
MR, CIMSTEAD: I am handinc the witness a page

S e X : S 3 AR ¢
entitlecd, "Exhibit BB” of a .ist 0f exhibits &c Midland

~ =~y 1! # > -~

oree - Jeaeral cXepotters, ne C
4dd NORTH ZAPITOL STREET . b b
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59
Intervenors Exhibit Number 60, whic:' is a copy of a hand-
written document entitled, "Outline," and ask if that's the
document which you requested?

THE WITNESS: Yes, Here's the thing I'm struggling
with, This request for all this information was an attempt
by Rex Renfrow to get as much information as he thoucht he
needed to meet the challenge in the hearings, and he stated
several times just because he asks for information doesn't
mean he was going to use it, you know, in any prepared %
testimony for Joe Temple. |

At the first part of the meeting we gave him a
draft prepared ﬁpon an outline that came from a telephone %
conversation.

Let me just ram through this so I can get a
better handle on it.

We gave him == is this it? Yes. We gave him ‘
information in a guestion-and-answer form. . . no, wait a
minute. This is the first part of this question-and-answer...|
This is more in statement form, the answers to the guestions
that Judd Bacon had asked him,

That, for scme reascn =-- I don't recall now why,

w
w

his outline, which is in more of a == it's a different

Ih
“©
'
g
ir
-

el ¢4 & Emomen  Tays T $ 3 ; .28
<« 85 STiil 1INl & summary Iorm, DUt it's sti. 22 a c er

-

w
4 |
o

fermat.

ez Federal cRemoriezs, Une - %q
4ad NORTH CAPITOL STREET

WASHINGTON, 3.5 20001 -

(202) Ja7.370C ‘)t.) o



10 |

n

13

14

18 |

16

12 |

60
Q What do you mean, in a summary form?
A Not a summary form, it's in a format that breaks
things down chronologically, okay?
Q Ckay, but _here isn't anything on the face of
Exhibit BB which indicates what form the testimeny would be

written in, is that correct?

A There's none. |
2 Just an outline? |

|
A Just an outline of subjects that they wanted Dow

to get information on.
Rex goes on further in the meeting to illustratee=-|

he said he wanted the informatiocn -- he wanted information in

a more direct fashion, other than our f£irst attempt that

had been made., He wanted informaticn in a different fotm..

I don't know, I guess I can't really recall what

he was trying to get to,.

Q In other words =- now, let me get this straight:

You're referring %o page 12 of your notes?

A Page 12, last paragrarh, where it savs,

"Rex stated that he didn't want any more from
Dow than what they put in Joe's draft., EHe did zoint
out, however, that he wanted it in a more direct fashicn.

Q It alsc says that Milt stated he thoucht he

£inally saw what Rex meant.

A (Nedding affizrmatively,)
a9
_‘—‘v '] » ~ 71 o ‘:\\ “ '
ce- _Tedemal cRenotiers, Unc -)b J
4dd NOATH CAPITOL STREIT
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Q And now if I can refer back to the summary, page

2 of Milt's summary == I think it's momentarily been mis-

placed ==

All right,

what he's referring to when he says:

Now, you're telling me that that's

"Consumers specifically rejected the suggestion

that Mr, Temple's testimony be reduced to writing and

£fered in evidence..."

2 Well, I think == let me give you a couple more

examples. That's my impression from reading my notes as

to what Milt was saying, and is also a reflection that I

interpret it to agree with what Milt's summary was as suci.

In fact, I address it and he addresses it.

But let me give you a . .

If you go to page 16, the last part of that big

paracraph there, the second to the last sentence:

"Rex stated that the questicning was going to

be by oral means.

important is not the idea that

but the means

Q What questioning is he referring
A The cuesticning of Joce Temple,
Q <2 other words, it was vour

by which you may wish to

Coensumers Power was coinc :© put eon the

Joe Temple ocrally?

1 =T ! . ~

STce . Jedetal SXetotiyTe
dd NCOARTH CASITCOL STREXT
WASHINGTON, 2.2, 000t
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A That's the impressicn I get £from reading that.
MR, CHARNOFF: From reading “"that?”
THE WITNESS: Page 1§, the second to the last
sentence in the big paragraph.

MR, REYNOLDS: 'S5 of your notes on the meeting

of 9-29?
THE WITNESS: Yes.
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:
Q Had yuu been involved in any administr=’’

proceedings before the Nuclear Regqulatory Commission before?

A No, never had.

Q In any discussions with Milt or Lee Nute, &id
anybedy ever menticon the fact that it was customary NRC
practice to present all direct examination in wr: igg?

A No, I didn't know that.at that point.

Q I£ I tell you that that is the customary practice
would your interpretation of those words be the same?

A My interpretation would be the same, ves.

MR, CHARNOFF: Let me just make a comment for the

I think I agree with you that it is customary
NRC practice for testimony == direct testimony == to te
recuced to writing, where there is time for is to ke Zcne.

So, as I understand i, this was a discussicn en

Septexter 29 at a meeting where they were talking aktcut a

p— "I ' o Q")
otce- Federal cReportens, Unc 36 J L/ =
4dda NORTH ZAPMTIL STREET
WASHINGTON, 2.2, 2000
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hearing I assume the very next week, on l10-6, There:zore, it

could well be under those circumstances that what was the
ordinary case would not have been anticipated.

MR, OLMSTEAD: I appreciate vour interpretation.
My problem with either interpretation is that there are
three drafts == in fact, cne of the pajes you're referring
to said draft number 6-on it, and ==~

THE WITNESS: There were lots of drafts.

MR. OLMSTEAD: == of direct testirony in writing.

And there's d..cussion in this record of not liking the
organizational ocutline, as I get it, because here's a new
outline from ..r. Renfrow,

So I just warted to make sure I understood .hat
the reference was here to the testimony. Eut.r gather you
would not deduce from that that chere was any intention on
the part of Consumers Power personnel or Dow perscnnel at
that time to put direct testimony in writing in the record
in question~and-answer format.

MR, CHARNOFY: Excuse me, Parenthetically, when
they were considering the hearing to be scheduled the very
next week,

MR, OIMSTEAD: Right, which they were at the

time of the Sertember 29 meeting.

MR, REYNOLDS: Bill, can I just for the recors,
indicate ==
2 3 4' i --a'l7 PRy 7,
Cce- Jederal cXRepotiess, Unc i
44d NORTH ZAMITOL STREZT 1 b 4
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MR, POTTER: Well, wait, he's got a question
pending. Let's either take the guestion off the record or |
let the witness answer it. I don't want to leave it hanging
with no answer to it.

| THE WITNESS: I think, going back **rough my notes
anéd refreshing my memory, there is no mention of format as
to question-and-answer,

MR, OILMSTEAD: Okay.

MR, REYNOLDS: Bill, if I could just interject
soemething to help clarify things, I believe in the normal
course in NRC proceedings, while you submit direct testimony
in writing, that when a witness takes the stand all
questioning is by oral means.

MR, OLMSTEAD: Off the record.

(Discussion off the record.)
MR, OLMSTEAD: Back on the record. ;

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q Mr, Durand, on the bottom of pace 15 of veour notes--
A Of September 292?
Q Right., The senter e azgears:

n the statement thas

.,J.

*Milt then read the preface
ne had prepared for Judd's use in recital hefare =he
3card, copy attached.”

And then cn page 1§ it says:

"Rex stated that e didn's want Jce %0 stars ofs

' J ’ A.
=z Fedenal cKRezcrters, Jne c i
4dd NORTH TAPITSL STREET ‘5 b "
WASHINGTON, 2.2 20001
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making this kind of statement initially, even though

he may have to say som:thing like it in the hearing

process."”

Could it be that the statement to which Mr. Wessel
refers in page 2 of his memorandum of October 5, 1976, was
to this piece of testimony that he had prepared for Joe's i
use, rather than the entirety of Mr, Temple's testimony?

MR, POTTER: For the record, I just simply have
got to ohject. I can't see having Mr, Durand answer what
Mr. Wessel had intended by something in his notes. There's |
just no way in the world it makes any sense., I just object.

MR, CHARNOFF: 1If I could comment on the form
of the gquestion ==

MR, OLMSTEAD: Let me put it another way.

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q Do you have any independent recocllection or
anyplace in your notes tou point to where you weould feel
comfo.table stating that it was Consumers' pesition on
September 29, 1376 that ncne cf Mr. Temple's testimeny

should be presented in writing for the record?

A I couldn't point to any place in my notes to
that.
Q Ckay, I asked you about vour caveat sentence

at the becianing of your nctes cnce before, to the effect

that vour notes sh.uld nct be —ecardec as verdatinm. lNow

™~ -~

ez Federal c~esorze. - Jne ~ () &

4dd MOCRTH CAPITOL STREXT " - L. "
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like to know whether you have prepared your nctes and
transcriptions and memoranda to the files with the idea in
mind that they might at some time become public, either
amcng the parties to the proceeding or cutside of Dow?

X No, I guess at the t;me I transcribed these notes
and prepared them, I felt that they were probably privileged
in some sense. I hadn't asked anybody that, bvt in my own
mind I felt they were probably privileged and wouldn't be
produced.

Q Okay. In spite of Mr, Wessel's letter of QOctober

5, 1976 which indicates that he had ceased thinking that

it's possible to get a verbatim transcript of these meetings, |

you continued to attempt complete notes,or at least as

compiete as possible nctes of meetings with Consumers Power

and Dow, is that correct?

A Yes.,
Q Why?
A I saw my responsibility in thcse meetings to take

notes in such a fashicn that it would produce an accurate
summary.

Q Was Consumers aware cf tlis effort, cr attsornevs
for Isham, Linceln and Beale?

A What, that I was goiaig %0 ==

Q That you were taki- Jaxtensive nctes and transe

p— . -
oce- Fedenal cKezorrers, ne
‘i NORTH ZTAPITEL STREXT ~N () 0N
WASKINGTON, 2.5, 20001 e L
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A In the first meeting Mr. Renfrow == I was intro-

duced to Rex and Judd, and I don't recall as to whether or

not Lee told them why I was there specifically, but as the

meeting continued it became apparent to at least Mr, Renfrow

that I was taking a lot of notes.

So during one stage of the meeting he got up and

just kind of walked around the room and walked up behind me

and said, "That's interesting, where did you learn to take

shorthand?"
Q That doesn't appear in your notes, is that
correct?
A Pardon me?
Q That statement dcesn't appear in yocur notes?
A I don't know if it doces or not. I guess I'd

have to look back through the notes again, ckay, and ==

Q What did you respond to that?
A I didn't say anything.. I just sat there taking
notes.,

MR, REYNCLDS: Off the record.

(Discussion off the record,)

MR, OLMSTEAD: Back cn the recerd.,

THE WITNESS: I don't recall that Mr, Nute or
Mr, Wessel ever sat down with Judd Bacon and Fex Renlrow
at the beginning ¢f the meeting and said, Mr, Durand :Is
here %c take nctes, he's gcing to make an accurate summary

crkz-fﬁn%uu';Qanmna Jne
4dd NORTH CAPITIL STREXT

WASHMINGTON, 2.5 20001 ¢ L
1202) 3473700 '2) J
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of them and publish them, or whatever, cn down the line,
I don't recall that ever being said.
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:
Q Wwas Isham, Lincoln & Beale, for Consumers, ever
aSked to confirm the accuracy of your notes concerning this

meeting, or these meetings?

A I never asked them., I don't know if anvone else

did. In fact, if I may go back to my criginal response to

your question, Mr. Renfrow mentioned my shorthand ability

at a break, because we got tc talking about my high scheol

and my taking shorthand in law schcol, and the whole bit.
So it wasn't during the meeting as such,

Q Now, are you aware of how the notes of meetings
between Consumers ind Dow during the contract negotiations
were handled?

A No.

Q Did Consumers Power personnel or Isham, Lincoln
and Beale personnel take notes of their own on Cctober 5,

1376 at the meeting that ycu were at?

A Octcber 57
Q Right, I believe that's the next meeting.
A Cctober 12, mavbe.

[

Octcber 127

. : -~ ; g 3 14 : ~ *
A vou saii Cctcber 3., I believe it's Cctoter 1.1,
11
Q All right.

e Tedenal =Remorters, Unc
add NCRTH ZAMTCL STREXT - J
WASHINGTSN. 3.5 20001 ( .
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A I can't recall if they took notes at all. I
really can't.

Q T don't have the reference in front of me, but
I suspect you'll recall that Mr, Wessel sent a letter to
Mr. Cherrvy setting forth Dow's non=-party pesition on
discovery. Do you recall a communication like that?

A Yes, it was something to the effect that we're

not a party and if you want to eff-ct discovery, why don't

you go through Consumers Power.

Q Right. Did you have any role in the érafting of

that letter?
A I really don't think so.

Q Was your memo to the files dated October 12,

1976 the first transcription of your notes for that meeting,

or was it edited by anyone else in the same manner as the
September 29 meeting?

A That was my first draft,

Q So on that cne, you just went directly to the
memo to the files?

A vYou're asking is there a copy that exists that

wn

micht be == if this is 13 paces, there was one that was
around 20 paces?

~ s 3 . - : By
Q Ar is “here one arcund 12 cages?

. TSR
A mhis is the criginal aract.

[ 8]

Hez- Fezeral Resorzers, Jne " qq
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October 12?
A Yes. And if I may clarify the second part cf
your questicn, the notes of the September 29 meeting really

weren't edited by anyone, oth.r than me going back and

sﬁmmarizinq.
Q Oh, ckay, [ ==
A Because I got the impressicn that == you know,

ncbedv other than myself edited these notes?

Q Okay. You didn't make rnore thau one draft of

10

n

12

13

14

i§

16

17 |

18

19

what occurred at the 10-12 meeting at any time?

A Mo. One draft.

And, in fact, all tche succeeding drafts were

prepared in that manner.

Q On page 2 of the Octcber 12 notes, if you'll

look at the second paragraph there it savs:

"Mr, Wessel asked Consumers Power what was

with the 10-6-76 draft of Mr, Temple's testimony

Doew gave. Mr, Bacon responcded he felt the 10=6

document was just an ocutline of testimony rather

an actual Mafe."

Now, in light of the preceding guestions
about the Sectember 29 meeting, is it reascnable
that there had teen some miscommunicaticn between Dcw and

Consumers a. $0 what form Mr, Temple's testimcny sheuld have

taxen?

d (-: d" -~ [ - < "~ - /‘.'
ce Jedetal s_Ktl,.C!.E‘!.‘. ~ R
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A Yes, I think “"u can assume that there was some
misunderstanding.
Q So I guess we can assume at this pociut everybedy

is clear that there's going to be written direct testimony,

and now Mr, Nute is wanting to know whether the written

direct testimony is gcing to be in gquestion-and-answer

form.

that form?

then talks

he deocesn't

the fourth

A

A

Q

A

Q

A

Q

(Nodding affirmatively.)
Is that correc:?
Yes.,

Yes.

frow said he didn't want it done in

Then later on there on the same page Mr, Wessel

about the form of the testimony and states that

believe that the form is really important.

That's the next paragraph down, page 2, akout

sentence,

That's what my notes reflect, ves.,

All right. Do vou have .ny further recall of

this discussion?

ne,

A

Cther than what's down fcllowing that sentence,

I don't have anv cther recall.

Ckav.

The following sentence references %o the facst

e Federal c<epories., Unc
4dd NCATH CTAPITCOL STREXT
W/BHINGTON 2.2 20001
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that Milt felt that all the information that we have in

terms of what Mr, Temple has to say we've given to Tonsumers

Power.

Q So Mr. Wessel feels that everything there is

that Dow wishes to contribute to the Temple testimony is

now in the Temple testimony, is that a fair reading?
A That's a fair reading.
Q Okay.
Now, the last paragraph, then:
"Rex Renfrow says he would like to see some
more information end up in Mr, Temple's . stimony

than what he has asked for to date."

So up to this point is it a fair characterization

of the positions of Dow aad Consumers that Dow was

concerned about getting toe much information in Temple's
testimony. When Rex Renfrow insisted on pursuing this issue

they excluded Judd Bacon from the meetings, where they got

into the negotiations, just sc that Rex and Dave Rossc

would have access to the information in preparation of the

testimony.

A Zes.

o~

»| And that in spite of that agreement they cec

hack with the next round of drafes, and Rex Renircw and

.

Dave Rcsso are still pushing for even mere infcrmat

-

- - I . -~
oz Teaeral c<eporiers, Tne.
Add MORTH CAPTTL STREEXT
WASHINGTON, 2.2 20001 ;W
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Wha* type of information, if you recall?

A I think the last part of that meeting, T think
Lee == look on page 13 of that same meeting., Lee then went
over the list of documents which Ra# was going to want to
review. They had already agreed that Rex was going to be
able to come up and review this additional information he
wﬁnted, and this list included the folleowing: And then it
yoes on.

A lot of that has to do with . ., .

Q And the fourth cne on that list is all dccuments
relating to what Dow and Consumers Power have discussed
regarding Joe =-- mean Joe Temple's testimony?

A Joe's testimony, yeS. Those are backup documents.

Q Right, Did you assume at that time that that
meant that they thought those documents would be presented
to the parties and the Bocard in some manner?

A Well, they're talking about backup documents
here, and I think in mayce this meeting or the first meeting |
Judd went through an elabecrate sucgestion on Dew's
respensibilities to keep backup dccuments ¢f any testimony
er infcormaticon that they gave *o Consumers in the event

et €

O

that, you know, if Myron cor anybedy olse wiinted £2

ul

it wny cculd back up that kind of information,

’4<

‘.2 - 1
o provide all that informa-

Q Sc thevy were zrerared

o

ticn to the Board and the sarties with the exception

e Federal =Remertezs, Unc
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house counsel for Consumers Power?
A Yes.

MR, CHARNCFF: When you say "they" were prepared,

who?
| MR, OLMSTEAD: Rex Renfrow and Dave Rosso.

THE WITNESS: Yes. Like I say, you go back
through these minutes as to when they arrived at an
agreement as to how to share this information, Rex wanted
to look at the information so that he would either have
as much information on the subject as possibie so that, ves,
he could present it all.

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q All right. I'd like a little clarification now
of these notes:

On page 5 - =

A Same meeting?
Q Right., The last paragraph, last sentence, says:

"A complete review of each item on Mr. Témple's

Araft testimony followed with all parties present
participating.”

Now, I'm assuming tl»t that's what the rest of

this decument, throuch pace 12 anéd en to pace 13, is. Is
that correct?
A Yes, IZ vou will recognize that it's Sroken

down intc the cutline ~= this outline under Exhini+s 33

| — [ 4 ”,
oo Feaera cRepertes, Jne
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Q Okay. So following receipt of Exhibit BB of
Intervencrs Exhibit Number 60 a new draft was prepared by

Dow Chemical, is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And that was discussed at this meeting of October
12,1976?2

A Right.

Q And the cutline represented by BB amounts to the

headings that you used in vour notes on pages & through 12?

A Yes.,

Q Okay.

At this point, in preparation for the forthcoming
hearings, it was generally felt that they were going to start
earlier than they ultimately did, I believe, is that correct?

A Yes. In fact, the first date was October 6, and
they wnre preparing Joe for COctcber 6.

Q So they'd really anticipated by this time being
in those hearings?

2 Right.

Q Would you describe the relaticns tetween (Consumers
Power Companv's lawvers ané Dow's lawyers in these meetincs,
which are essentiallv lawvers meetings, as ccrcial, cor
hostile, cr scme cther?

A At times they were cordial., I think more they

were constructive. They weren't hostile, as such, There

109

. .) W
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wasn't == oh, possibly there may have been a feeling between

Lee Nute and J. id Bacon occasionally that surfaced. 3But
for the mos. part I think that the two groups of lawyers

sat down and exhibited the attitude that they had a job to

do, and theyv wer ' going to get it done. They worked together

on it., I think the 2 ount of work put out by the two
reflects that, essentially.

And to answer your question, there was no

host .ity as such. There was more of a constructive effort.

Q Ckay. Now, on page 8, secondi paragraph, there
appears to be one sentence:

"Lee Nute discussed how the decision was made

by the Dow U. S. Area becard.”

And then as I read it, there's nothing on how
that decisicn was reached in your notes iere. Am I missing
something, or is this ., . .

A No. I think all Lee did was go back through the
summary of what had happened. And all I've got down in my
notes, or all I decided to take down in my notes, because
there were cother documents that reflected the zroccess, and
I chose nct to record exactly what Lee Nute saicd.,

As I recall, he's the only one who *alked,

* Well, they're discussing the Temple testimonv

on zace 7, and leacing into pace 8§, and --

A And thev're talkinc about it in == ﬂ'\b

- = ” -~ 71
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Q And again Consumers is pushing fc.° more information

in Mr, Temple's testimony. And then there's this discussion

about how the Cow US Area board reached their decision, and
they drov.d further discussion of that item.

Am I reading too much into taat? E

A I think you are, and maybe you can correct me :

as such. They're into the section about == let's see . . . [

Q *Continuing Michigan Division review," Secticn

3. |

A The paragrapi jefore that gets into -~ let's see..i

|

Rex was asking, or stated, that cne of the reasons he asked :
for the economic study was because of the possibility that
the Dow board relied on it to make their decision.

Q Okay.

If we go to the paragraph just after the Nute

reference I gave you on page 8, it says: ;
"Dave Rosso wanted to know if there was anyvthing
further to discuss on item 23C,"
All right, 3C, as T understand it, is "Continuing
Michigan Division -eview cf contract declsion and reasons
therefor.” 1Is that correct?
A Yes,
Q And evicdently Consumers was examining tials

shroughout this discussicn, up until Mr, Nute descriles how

the decision was macde by the Dow bcard, And then further
- ”(:\
- J ” ¥y N
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discussion of 3 is dropped, including what would have been

3D' "Acticen taken,"

And then we ask Judd Bacon to leave the room and

we go through a lot of things on the history of Consumers

Power and +hy Mr., Temple has a credibility problen.

€o, 1 was just curious, if I asked you to go

back and look at ynur stencgraphic notes of this meeting

would you have down what Mr, Jute said?

A No.

MR, POTTER: Could I ask a guestion that will

maybe clarify that? At least I hope it will:

You characterized the statement as being dropped

after Lee Nute discussed how the decision was £irst made

by the Dow U.S. Area boarc. The next paragraph begins:

"Dave Rosso wanted to know if there was anything further

to discuss on item 3C,"

I'éd prefer to have Mr., Durand, if he hasn't

already done 30, complete reading page 8, tc see whether

the rest of it doesn't axplain and answer that, cor else

whetaher the matter really is dropced at that peint,

THE WITNESS: Actually, the matter
as such, The reascn ==
BY MR, CLMSTEAD:

-

-~
-

et me rephrase it. I the mattser

is not drogcoed,

changed

tone and direction, if vou would read your ncte~?

C— F
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R I'd have to read 7, because . . . in fact, let

me start from 6 and read that whole section.
(Witness reviewing dscument.)

Q All right, Having refreshed your recollection
on the material on pages 7, 8 and 9 of your notes of
October 12, 1976, would you agree that there's a change in
tone about the discussion of what should be in Temple's
testimony relating the outline item 3C, which is the
continaing Michigan Division review, or contract decision
and reasons therafor?

A I don't ac~  there's a change in tone, because
if you go out to tne early parts of the meeting, together
with the manv parts in the 9-.. meect.~a, Mr, Wessel is
consistently %aking the positicn that the decision reached

by =he Mf .aig». Division in the review of the thing is

.irrelevant. 2nd ==

Q Sc you don't think there's a disagreemen% between

Mr. Wessel and Mr, Rossc and Mr, Renfrow on what should be

put in item 3?

MR, POTTER: I wish vou hadn't cut him off, Were

you finished with your answer?

TeE WITNESS: No, what I was geing to elatcrate
on was the fact that there's disagreement all the i
through ‘mis thing == well, I den't know if theze's

disacreement. Mz, Wessel has said that == if vou lock 3Zacx

4'\\
. J
Ace- Federal Rescriens, Tne <
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on page 5 at the bottom:

*In the area of a continuing Michigaa Division
review Mr. Rosso stated that it was impertant to
emphasize that the Dcw board's decision is the thing
the parties should be locking at., Mr, Wessel stated
that that was his point exactly, and alsc why he felt
so reluctant to answer gquestions from Consumers Power
pertaining to the Michigan Division review."

BY MR. OIMSTEAD:

Q All right, stop right there,

Doesn't that sen:ience imply that Consumers Power
was warting to put in information concernizg the Michigan
Pivision review in the testimony, that Mr. Wessel did nnt
want to put in the testimony?

A No, In fact, just the opposite. Mr, Rosso is
saying that the only important thing to emp@asize is the
Board's decision, aad Milt is saying I agree with you; S0
why get into this thing about the Michigan Division at all,

Q Okay. Let's locck down at the first sentence in
the rext paragraph, pace 7:

"Mr, Rosso stated that when Consumers Power
considers what tc put in to Mr, Temple's direct
testirony, they will have to try and anticipate what
Mr, Cheryy is going to ask in the cross-examinati ..,.°

Isn't it true that reorle cenerally acreed that

.
cﬁkz-:udﬂwf.:eqnnnna Tne
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if Mr, Cherry was to show up at the proceeding, he would
inquire into the Michigan Division review?

A Yes.

Q And isn't it a fair implication of that sentence
that what Mr. Rossco is saving, by tryinc to anticipate
cross-examination, is that they need to put information 1in
concerning the Michigan Division review?

A I£ you go down about half way through that same
paragrapgh, Dave Rosso centinues:

*He further pointed ocut that his criginal stand
was no: to get into the Michigan Division review and
the reasons for that review being reversed by the Dow
board., He then made the cbservaticn that he is now
becoming concerned because he has heard that Mx, Cherry
may already have this information.”

‘'~ interpretation of that is that he's torn
between putting it in and not putting it in, but he also,
as T understand it, agrees with Milt that it's not really
important. And Milt is saying, wait a minute, since it's
net impertant and since it's sensitive to cur ongoing

negotiations, why get into the whole damn mess?

Q Sc Milt is savinc let'~ nct cet into it?
A Yes. Cecause he 2idn't feel it was impcerstant cr

Q And Rosso is leaning to getting ints it mere than
AN
-\
b4 7 ! . Q ] o
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Milt wants to get into it?

A Yes, because, as stated here, he's ncw becoming
concerned because he has heard that Mr, Cherry may already
have this information.

Q But as of this date, no testimony for Mr, Temple
has been filed, is that corre.t?

A True. And, in fact, asking for the information
and putting it in the testimony are two different things at
this point.

I think both meetings reflect that,

Q Right. I don't want to get downstream of myself
before we get there,

Qkay. I want to ¢o back to page 8 now, and the
discussion by Lee Nute of how the decision was made by the
Dow Area board, which dces not appear here, and ask vou if
you have any reccllection of your own as to hew the decision
was made, or if you have zny knowledge of your own as ta
hew the decision was made?

A My knowledce only goes to review ¢f scmecne's
statement as to how it was made. I didn't participate in

it. That was done before T got involved in the mat:er,

Q Ckay. Now, at page 3, the fourth paracrazh,
which ycu referred me tc scmetime ace, Judd Baceon was asked

to leave the rocm, :nd the :eascn you gave before was thev

didn't want to get into sensitive necctiating positions thae

Hce- Federal =Reporters, Tne %
4ad NORTW ZAMTOL STREET
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would prejudice Dow in the ongoing discussions with Ccnsume:#

Power,

A Right., In fact, if I may refer you back tc, I

think, the previocus meeting on September 29, . . .

(Pause.) _

|

Q Well, I accept that, I == ;
A Qkay. I'm looking for a statement where Rex i

came back and said, Look, Milt and I agree that some of
this stuff we're going to be asking you is sensitive to
ongeing negotiations, and we agree that when we get into
that stuff that we'll ask Judd o leave.

Q Oh, I have no problem with that. As a matter
of fact, there is a letter signed by Rex Renfrow someplace
tc that effect.

Now, after Judd Bacon leaves the rcom on page 8,

Milt ocutlines several items that he says == or you attributeI

to him as saying == result in Joe == I assume that's Joe

Temple ==
A Yes. 1
Q == having a credibility problem with Consumers
Power,

Now, is it vour understancding that ohese
zepresent M .:'s understanding of Joe Temple's problems, o
are these general prcblems that Milt serceives?

A I really == all 1I'd have to be -oing is assuming,

— ¢ . P
oFce- Feaeral cResorrers, Unc B
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Q And the last item there is:

"A lot of what Myron Cherry states about
Consumers Power is rz2ally true.”
Now, were any specific examples civen?

A I really don't believe so.

Q Was it vour impression that at this point the
tension between Consumers' lawyers and Dow's lawyers had
increased?

MR, POTTER: I'm sorry, do you mein in neetings
after this because of this event, or right at that point?
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q In this meeting, from this time on, to the end
of the meeting were there greater tensions between Rosso,
Renfrow and Nute and yourself? You weren't participating
much, but . ., .

A Nc, and I think the reason there wasn't is
because Judd Bacon was asked to leave the room.

Q In other woras, there were tensions develcroing
before he left th~ room?

A Every time Judd Baceon asked a question about
that kind of information == and you'll ses it on the

record == he gets a respeonse from Milt or Lee saving, zev,

s
'

&
~CXr.

what do you want to get iato tha

it

st
And that's about the cnly time Curing all these

meetings == a: least these twc early meetings == where

p— ” ! y
e - ederal .:’\Dzace:eu. .7nc - 4
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things got a little tight between Judd Bacon and either
Milt or Lee.

There's one refercnce in the notes to Malt
saying, why do you want to get into this stuff? It isn't
important.

Q in other words, they suspected his mocives?

A The inference was that Judd wanted it because
the information he was asking for might help him in future
negotiat.icons with Dow, and Milt and Lee were aware of that.
And they said, hev, we're not going to give it to you, so
stop asking fcr it. And that went back and forth several
times.

But I think in response tou your questicn, I
don't think things changed much Irom what they were from
the beginning, in terms of feelings between Rex ard Dave
and Milt and ze.

Q I'd like to go to page 10 ncow, the last para-
graph, and you may want to read some of this to refresh
your reccllection., I'm interested in the las: paragrarh
on that page,

(Witness reviewing document.)

(8]

n on tae

I'm alsc going to ask you a cuesti

fourth paragraph on that page.
(Witness ceviewing <ocument.)
A Nkay.
-
4 —: ! ” -~ ﬂ (
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Q Let's take the fourth paragrapch on page 10, where
it says what Rex Renfrow stated, and there's a dashed line,
"Consumers Power has a winner on the suspension
hearing == Consumers Power has a prcblem because the
Appeal Board may not realize that Dow does not have
until 1985 before they are forced to act on the
decision of whether to start on n3w plants or not."
Did arycne at that meeting suggest tlLat a 1985
date or a 1984 date, or some date short of 19385, be included

in the Temple testimony or otherwise supplied to the

proceeding?
A I really don't recall.
.Q Now, in that last paragraph, on the question of

whether the ongoing negeotiations on the Dow steam contract
were irrelevant, was that view generally held, in your
opinion, by everybody at that meeting:

(Pause.)

Do you recall any argument as tc the relevance

!

of the ongeoingy negotiations? Other than what we've discussed |

previcusly, about how you went abcut preparing for cross~

examinaticn?
A I think everycne acreed that it was irrelavans,

| - 2 » . » ¥ -~ 3 »
( That, together with the Michigan Division review.

g I'm sure that eveivbedy is going €c be happy S0

fear this, but I'm readv to go %2 the ll=-l actes.

o (o 4 / ‘ -
:rkz-.hzuzat.:faxnuz; Tne. At
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MR, WEISBARD: I thought you were going to say,
to dinner.

(Loughter.)

MR. PCUTTER: You mean there's still an cptimist
in the rocom?

(Laughter.)

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q Ce you recall when you transcribed these notes,
the November 1, 1976 memo to files?

o Do I recall when I actually sat down and
transcribed them?

Q Right., Was this normally == well, let's just
take all the notes that vou prepared. Did you.normally do
that the next day, or was it a weex later, or at your
leisure, or was there any time press?

A There was a time press to transcribe th2 first

notes, which I did, I think, immediately.

After we agreed as to what kiné of notes I should

be == you knov . as to what role they would play in terms
of whether it was goinc to be an accurate summary rather
than verbatim, I didr't feel any pressure to immediatelv

git down and transcribe then.

n
O
(5]
t
%;
1
W
[}
o
b+
(28
"
.1
o
L

cwn anywhere frcm a week

£ three cor Ifour cor five weeks a‘fter I =cck these .ctes.

Q Now, was the meeting of Neve-ber 1, 1375 as
AN\
p— ’ Q 71 5\
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long as the previous two meetings?
A I really don't recall, I really don't.

Let me make another statement, too. My sitting
down == I could sit down today, three yvears after taki’
these notes, and probably give ycu 99 percent of what I
put down. That's the way I work wit'i my notes, I don't

lose anything in terﬁs of what they say.

Q Was this ycur first transcription of those nctes?

A Yes,

Q And you made no other transcriptions of those
notes?

A No other.

Q Okay. :

Except for the fact th.t the meeting may not have

lasted as long, I got the impression that your notes, as
the meetings were longer, got shorter. Like this iz 8
pages long, Is there scme ==

A They got shorter in teims of acrial vulume. Let
me see ., . .

Q Do you feel trat thev're less accurate because
of that, or is it because the meetincs are shcrter, cor there
was less cressure to have as detailed a recorsi, cor

A No, I think scme of these meetincs cn

[
(%4

like in the meraing., I'am trving ¢7 rememcer ncw. 3Some of

the meetings went all day, and scme cf them didn's sc 2ll

7 ‘\(b
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day, okay? And the ll-!-76, that's where we kind of cut=-
and-pasted this testimeny and stuff together.

I think up to the pecint where we sat down and
started putting this testimony together in guestion~and-
answer form, it probably only lasted i1 coLple of hours at
the most.

So I think in relaticn to what yo-' had in the
9-29 meeting, which lasted the better part of a day, and - =
let's see . . . well, like on the meeting of 10-12, we met
from 10:25 to 4:25.

That first meeting, it seems %0 me I recall that
thing lasted the better part of the day.

So I think, to answer your question, the shorter

length docesn't really mean that I got less and less complete.

Q Okay.
MR, OLMSTEAD: O0Off the record.
(Discussicn off the record.)
MR, CLMSTEAD: Let's take a short break.
(Recess.)
MR, OLMSTEAD: On the record.,
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:
Q I believe we were talking abcut veour November .,
1976 mamo for the files. There's a diszcussicn in here in

i Lo . . . . . o .
izrst big paragraph, it's the fourth paracrTazh in thas

:-. / 4 e /7 ”
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A On page 1?

Q Yes. Where Rex asked Milt about the documents
he wanted to take back to Caicago. Milt asked Rex if he
was talking about the sealed package of documents, and
Rex discussed the documents he was going to let Cherry see.
Mr, Cherry.

Then in the next paragraph, Milt says he doesn't
care whether Mr, Cherry sees those documents. He just
didn't want Consumers Power to see them,

So I gather that we're talking abouat the same
decuments that we were talking about when Judd Bacon lef!.
the room in your October 15 memorandum; namely, those types
of documents that reflected the ongoing negotiation
positions of the parties, is tﬁat correct?

A Wait a minute, we've got two sets of documents
here.

Q That's what I'm really tr 'ing to ascertain, just
exactly what we're talking abcut, in terms of decuments.

(Witness reviewing documern*s.)

A We're talking abcut the doc'ments that were
protected under that protective order that was sicned --

Q Which, as I understand it, are essentially the
intervencrs exhibi: number 50, Are we talking atcut tiacse

documents? Thosa are Lhe ones that were releasecd.,.

A You know, I zeally couldn't tell you. I didn't
i\ ¢
- 3
4 - ! » d N\
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have any hand in making up the documents. I didn't drai.
the protective order, and I would just be, I think,
guessing as to what documents ycu're talking about.

Q My next gquestion was: Dic you know what was in
that package of decuments, and I gsther your answer is
no?

A My answer is no.

Q Okay., Was *%here any concern that you perceived
on the part of Mr, Wessel about what Rex Renfrow was going
to do with the sealed package of deocumcnts?

2 I couldn't answer that,

Q Okay. In the last paragraph on he £irst page,
there's some discussion of the meeting notes, and Rex notes
that Consumers Power doesn't have any meeting nctes
similar to Dow., Then he talks about Mr, Youngdanl's nctes.

Now, are the notes that we're talking about
there not the notes that you had been keeping of the
meetings between the attorneys for Consumers and the

attorneys for Deow?

A Tey're not.
Q What nctes are thevy?
A I think they':z- notes about ongoing negotiations

and stass,

o~

2 Ckay.

A They quite pcssibly could ineclude notes whick

cFce- Federal zRezorrezs, Une
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were of the meetings of September 21, That would be
speculating on that, I think they're probably notes of
ongoing negotiations, because . . .

Q At this time to the best ¢f your knowledzye
Consumers still didn't know of your memos to the f‘les, is
that correct?

MR, POTTER: Wiich memos?

MR, QLMSTZAD: The ones that we've been discuss-

ing here.
MR, POTTER: Durand's uctes? ~*
MR, OILMSTEAD: Yes,
THE WITNESS: I didn't tell them about them.
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:
Q Okay. On page 2, the third paragraph, Lee Nute

asked Rex about the possibility of getting out of the
hearing.
Is that reference to the continuing Dow position

that they were not a party to the hearing?

A Yes,

Q At this time they still hadn't been ordered as
a rarty in the proceeding, had thev?

A I think to answer that vou'd have to go back and

review the documents ¢f == the problem I have is when we

5
e Feaeral cReperiers, Une b%) J
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(Discussion off the record.)

MR. OLMSTEAD: Back on the recor 1,

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q Okay. On page 2, the third paragraph, Lee Nute
asks Rex abcut the possibility of getting out of the
hearing, This statement does not refer to getting ocut of
the hearing as a party, is that correct?

A You know, after our discussicn on this thing,

{ really couldn't answer that. There's a possibility it
could mean that, and it could mean socmething else, It
could mean either getting out of the hearing as a party,
eor everybody getting out of the hearing.

So my answer to your questicn is that I can't
interpret that for you.

Q In other words, you don't know whether ﬁe's
talking about Dow, Dow and Consumers, Or ==

A I don't know.

Q Qkav.

On page 3 == and I guesds you're going to have €O
refer == no, never mind.

mhe first full paragraph there, where it saye:

A Qkav.
Q Was it veur impressicn at shis meeting == and

refresh vour memory Lo the ex=snt vou need o == That I

. ——

=
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Wessel preferred that Temple not be used tc testify, at <
this point in the ongoing discussions?
A Are you'askinq me if at the time, at this time, '

in the preparation of Joe's Temple, that Milt was under
the impression that he didn't want Joe to be the witness?

Q Yes, that maybe he was beginning to think that

it would be better to use someone else? Was there any of

that flaver in the meeting:

A Not from Milt, In fuct . . . no, not from Milt,
Q Okay. Then let's take a sentence or two out E
of thai paragraph and examine it a minute. - E

About the middle of that paragraph he == I
assume that's Milt == stated that he did want to make it
very clear that the testimony was Consumers Power's doing,

and not Dow's,

Now, what do you think he meant by that?

A That goes back to Milt's previous reference

about Consumers Power putting this stuff together, and ;
Dow is just supplying information. The impression I get |
€rom reading that sentence is just that, he wanted to 5
make it very clear that Consumers Power was putting testimonﬁ
together.,

Q Ckay, but if we co back to the last paragrarzi
on pace 2, and leacding intc that statement on page 3, Dow

had evidenti.v redraZted the Temple tes imony andé put i*

. r
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back in an affidavit form. 1Is that cocrrect:!
A If you read the first part of that last para-
graph on page 2, Dave Rosso stated that the main problem
he had with Dow's draft is that it looks more like an

affidavit than testimeny.

Q Okay. And Milt said this wasn't done inadvertent-

ly, we did that deliberately, when ycu go to the next

paragraph?
A Yes.
Q Then he states that he is concerned with what

may happen on Jce's cross-examination.
Now, why do vou think he was concernedl?

A 'I'd have to speculate.

Q Well, isn't the next ser - ce there that he's
concerned that Consumers Power may come back at a later
date and say Dow nhot the thing down because it comes out
on Temple's cross-examination what the Midland Division
positicn was?

A That could be part of it,

Q Axd then it says, Dave Rossc stated that he
didn't really follow up with Milt, Ané then we 30 on inte
a further discussion.

A I think the next to the last sentence, "Mils
stated that Dow is concermed with Consumers Power comincg

back sayin Dow shet the thing down."”

.
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Q Now, let's take that paragraph the next step,
then.

*Rosso asked if it would se better if the
testimony was put in guestion-and-answer form."

Then:

"Milt stated that this would at least show
that the testimony was being brought cut in response
to Consumers Power's gquestions.”

Now, was that -

A ®.e.n0t a2 product solely of Dow."

Q Right. And was that because he was afraid that
if it were in dire *t examination and not in question-and-
answer format, he'd later be accused of breaching the

contract with Consumers Power to support their application?

A That was c-e of the concerns.,

Q So that the use of the gquestion-and-answer format |
was to compromise, 1f you will, the disagreement between
Rex Renfrow and Rosso and Milt Wessel on the other hand,
over how to go about apprcaching the Midland Division
positicn in the Temple testimony. Would that be correct?

A No, I think it was more cf a == well, that may
be one 0f the feelincs about it, Bvrt it was more of a
cecopronising the dilenmma that MIlE Sound himself in, (1)

havine a legal cblication contractually to support Consurers,

but nct wanting to compromise their position in the oncoinc

. -~
ce. Federal =Reporiens, rn- ~ W
Add NORT™ GA"’Q‘S STREXT
WASHINGTTSN, 2.5. 20001
(202} 3473700



10

n

1 2 \

13

14

18

%

17

8

19

97

negotiations. And that possibly was a compromise.

Q So that this discussion of misleading testi »ny
that we have ==

A In the next paragragh?

Q == in the next paragraph, would really be a
concern with Milt that one could be misled into believing
that Cow had not fully supcvorted Consumers in their efforts
in the licensing proceeding, rather than a concern that the
testimony itself was untrutiful?

A I couldn't agree with that =statement.

Q 30 you feel that the belief cof the Dow lawyers
was that the testimony, in ..Zz%t2=" 1, was misleading?

A Rather than make that statement and give pecnle
the impression that Dow attormeys felt Consumers Power's
draft language was misleading, I think it would probably be
better to go to +he draft itself together with lettess that
Mr, Nute had exchanged wita Mr, Bacon, to get a better
£laver of what Mz, Nute's and Mr, Wessel's ccnce:us were,
rather than me trying to characterize it.

Q Yes, but we hare gone throuch a number of thcse
drafts up to this peint, nd ==

A Well, the cne . just mentionec, the reascn I

b¥ring that u

A

is 2.1t and lLee were tarticularly concerned
as ¢o what the impressicn a perscn would get readinc

Consumers Power's draft, that particular drafs, of Joe's

e Federal cRevorters, Jne - 7297
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testimeony. And they wanted to keep away from it being

regarded as misleading.

Now, as to why they felt it was misleading or

disincenuous, or whatever term you want to use, I really
don't recall.
Q But at this point the testimony that we had

before us was not the testimony that was to be submitted

for Mr, Temple, is that correct? At this peoint, we had

jwot a few moments previously, agreed to a new format for

that testimony, so we didn't have the draft?

A No. I think in response to your one guestion

we hadr't arrived =-- well, here's the problem,

so many 4rafts going through as to == you know, if you got

There were

one draft, let's say it was the sixth draft, at the time

that you received it people reviewing it, I don't think,

could make a decision as to whether or not that was going

to be the final draft., As it turns out, they went throuch

a couple of drafts after this, at least.
Q Right, S0 ==

A So it would be

d to say, well, is this the

draft that's going to get to the Board? AaAnd, therefcre,

it could e found to be misleading. I would thi:

ink

3
that

it was possilble that it would get to the 3card il it was

going to be the last draft that everybeody cculd agree cn.

Q Okay. MNow, you just trijcered in my mind ancther

P, =~ J I 7T
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question that I'd like to usk of your own knowledge about:
In all this drafting process that's gone on in

these th:eé meetings we've discussed up to now, Joe Temple
was at a couple of those meetings, but the drafts that are
aéinq exchanged are essentially being changed from lawver
tc lawyer, is that correct?

R Yes. Are you asking who prepared them, or ==

Q I'm asking vou to tell me the degree tc which
Joe Temple was being consulted as each draft was prepared,
or were these drafts being exchanged among lawyers with
the idea that when you got some sort of agreement you would
give it to Mr, Temple and see what his reaction was?

A I only recall one situation in regards to drafts
of Joe Temple's input in it, I got the impression that ==

I don't recall now whether it was Milt or Lee, because

they both drafted their own, as such == I got the impression!

that at least one of them, and possibly both of them, had
put the information together in a format, ¢ :en it in to
Joe Temple, and went over .t with him., And I don't knecw
if Joe agreed with it or not.

Q uader Dow's policy would there have been any
documentation of concurrence? I mean under Your nermal
practices in tha cffice, in dealing with clients woull
taere be any carbon copy with initials »n it, or anytiling

that would indicate %Lhat he had read the testimony?

r
c; (—‘- . -~ /7 . ' ‘5) &k)
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A T don't really know, If there is, I'm not
aware of a procedure, I do know there's some statement in
some of these in the racord here which =-s that cne,
either Milt or Lee, said, look, I've been to Joe on these
thinql as many times as I can, because h2's said all he's
going to on the subject, or sometiing in that regard, which
leaves 0i.2 with the impression that he was involved in the
drafting of the testimony.

And I think to understand that == I guess I
can't imagine Joce Temple not getting involved.

Q Okay. Llet's go to page 6, paragrach 3.

We've discussed tliis testimonv now for some time
following the discussion of whether the testimony was
misleading or accurate, As I read your notes, a lot of
chénqes were made in the drafts that they were working on
at that time.

The third paragraph says:

"Rex then proceeded tn suggest several changes
and modifications or additions. He said that in the
first paragraph he weuld like to add the follewing
statement == 'This testimeny was prepared under my
supervision and direction and is true and accurate
£ the best ¢of nmy ~owledce.'"”

Now, at that time cid anybody frcm Cew, namely

yourself, Mr, Nute or Mr., Wessel, cbject %o the iaclusicn

ez Federal =Reperters, Unc s y 1 ‘1)
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of that statement in the testimony?

A I didn't object, and I don't recall that anycone
did, 1If I may review that paragraph for a second . . .

Q Sure.

(Witness reviewing document.)

A My notes do not reflect that anycne on the Dow
side objected to it.

Q So is it a fair conclusion, then, that once the
compromise == which is what we agreed to call it == was
reached, to put the testimony into question~and-answer
format, that there was no longer any objections on the
part of anyone as to whether the testimony was a true and
accurate disclosure of information relating to the Dow’
position?

A Let me rephrase that so that 1 canltry to
understand what you asked.

Are you saying that after we agreed on 2
compromise positicn then everycne invelvaed in that
proceeding was satisfied that what the end product was
going to be was accurate?

Is that what you're saying?

») well, I'll accert that, fcr purposes o an
answer,
A I think the pecrle iavelved in dralftinc tlat

: s . ; . B ; Lo acoa )
testimeny at that point in time felt that the Ilnlcormacicn

g f 2 77 -
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that they were going to present in Joe Temple's testimony

was true and accurate, and included what they felt was
all the relevant informaticn.
Q Ckay. So that when we get down to the bottom
of that page, page 6, 'here Milt states that the Dow
board got the impression that Consumers Power wanted Dow
to produce a witness that didn't know what had ccne on,
and Dave Rosso stated a couple of sentences later he
didn't feel he was asking Low to make a subctantive change,.

te's fair to conclude then that the matter had been

resclved?
A The matter peing that , . .?
Q The witness was ~oing to be Jce Temple.
A Yes.
o] And everybody agreed that the witness was going

to be Joe Temple?

A Yes..

Q And that the testimony that had been prepared
for Jce Temple's sicnature was true and accurate?

A True and accurate, and included, they felt,

what was all the relevant information, ves.

Q All ¢f the relevant information? That weat Zer
Dow's attornevs as well as for Consumers attcrnevs at that
tine?

kY Yes. Anc the reascn I Xeer throwing that last

=/ p
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couple of words on there is the fact th.t I think at that
poirt in time both sides agreed tha* che Michigan Divisiecn
review was not relevant nor important.

Q Okay.

Going back to that sentence on page §, bottem of
page §, where Milt said that the Dow board had gotten the
impression that Consumers Power wanted Dow to preoduce a
witness that didn't knew what had geone on, do veu have any
independent knowledge ¢f how they got that impressicn?

A I wasn't present at the meeting where they got
the impression., I've raad docunents. Specifically, I think
Lee's notes may have =- I don't have any independent
knowledge.

MR, CHARNOFF: You say Lee's notes of that
meeting? What meeting?

THE WITNESS: I think it's . . .what, September

21.
MR, CHARNOFF: Ckay. You're referring te the
meeting with Consumers Pcwer Company in September?
BY MR, CLMSTEAD:
Q But you weren't at that meeting.
A No, I wasa't at that meeting. I could be
mistaken on the date.
MR, CHARNCFT: 3ut that's? not 2 Dow soars meetinc
that you were referring to.
cﬁkz-fﬁianf‘:?gxnuza Tne . 7?55
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THE WITNESS: No. No. I'm talking about ==
you're right, it would be confusing if I left it as such.

The impression that Dow got that Consumers Power wanted

them t.0 produce a witness who didn't know anything allegedly

haprened at a meeting September 21.
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q That was communicated back to the board?

A And the board, I don't know when they got the
information. I really don't,

Q But it's your belief that the board gnt the
information by having the information relayed to them from
a participant at the 21st meeting, September 21 meeting?

A It's possible, because there were notes made of
that.

Q Qkay.

In the middle of page . it says that:
*rse Nute pointed out that Dcw management saw
two general areas of significant misrepresentation

from Consumers that Dow was concerned about."

One dJealt with the prospectus and the second wifth avidently

some statements bv Consumers Power since the 1374 amendé~-
ments were acreed %c., And then “ex said that he knew about

smose issues ané Lee Nute == and that he zut informaticn in

- s amas

-

' 1 -
she 2raft so that Cherry couldn't savy that Jce Temp.2 a2

misled him. Ané then Nute cbserved that ehis was the wav

Sy, 1.5
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that Joce Temple wants it stated.

Do you know what those two misrepresentations

ara that were being referred to there?

A I gquess you could read it that the twec rep.escata~

ticns are the two items previcusly worded,

Q Rizht, but it says Rex knew what these issues
were,

A Knew about these issues.

Q And the issue was that "things", but things are

not defined in the note, and the other is a s2ricus misrep~
resentation since the 1374 amendments were agreed to, but
it doesn't specify what it is.

What I'm asking is: Do you know what those two
items are?

A No, I don't., I can't at this point recall.

Q You don't think they were identified in this
meeting, other than Lee Nut2 making that statement and Rex
saying, yes, I knocw about that, wha.ever that was, and
moving on?

A I rather doubt that they were identified, That's
part of the precblem of these meetincs, that scme of the
way things got stated wera incemplete, ané relferences to
thincs that evervbedy assumed thev knew abcuz.

So it wouldn't be uncommen tc ha.e that sost of

a4 statament sitting there and not fully defined, because

2 ! __r _{
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the pecople who were talking about it knew what they were
talking about, but ==

Q But I assume, subject tr your correction, ihat
the final sentence of the next paragrach, where Lee Nute
cbserved this is the way Joe Temple wants it stated,
indicates that Dow personnel fe¢lt (hat whatever thcse two

things were, they were sufficiently covered in the Temple

testimony so as not %o raise a misrepresentation before the

board.

MR, CHARNOFF: Could I have that question read
back, if it was a question?

MR, OLMSTEAD: Let me restate i.

MR, CHARNOFF: 1If it wasn't a gquestion, I don't
want it read back.

MR, OLMSTEAD: It was a questicn, but I put in
too many qualifiers I think,

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q Cn page 7 there are two references to %hings
that may have been misreprresented by Consuners Power. =ex
Renfrow states he knows what those are. You have stited
you don't know specifically what these are, and vou den'ts

think they were specifically indicated a%t the meeting.

i

A . -
aa-e

Q Tnen, at the end cof that sentance is that Lee

Nute cbsezved that "this”® == relerring back %o zerhaps Rex's

Az Federal cReportens, Jnc v
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reference to the way the Temple testimony was drafted is
the way Joe Temple wants it stated.

Now, my question to you is:

Am I to take that sentance as indicating general
agreement on the part of Dow cou:sel present at that
meeting that whatever those two things were, the Temple
testimony was drafted in such a way that the board would
not have the testimony misrepresentz2d tc them ==

MR, CHARNOFF: The Licensing Board,

MR, OLMSTEAD: The Licensing Boari == on those
issues which Dow felt had been misrepresented by Ceonsumers.

THE WITNESS: T really couldn't answer that
question, because I don't have the . . . I just don't know.
I really don't., I cculdn't get that ocut of reading this
ané rcfreshing my memory, either, It's just not that
complete there,

MR, REYNOLDS: Can we go cff the reco.d just for

a2 minute?
(Discussiocn off the record.)
MR. CLMSTEAD: Back on the record,
BY MR, OIMSTEAD:
Q On saces 7 and §, the last two lines cn zace 7

anéd over to saze §, the tcr ¢ sace

(%))

» Lt says Lthat Rex

-

would like %0 have the stasement in the tastimon:

e |
<
)
5
fu
i
)
O
2

would continue to review it and keep all its octions cre:
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And Milt cautioned that this statement brought out the
tenuousness between Dow and Consumers.

Subseqg “tly in the proceeding that became a
very stock reply of Milt Wessel, that Dow was xeeping its
options open.

Why was Milt cbjecting to inecluding it in the
testimony here, if you know?

A I wouldn’t know, other than what I can read:

*Milt cautioned that this statement brought

out the tenucusness between Dow and Consumers Power.,”

I really couldn't give you an interpretaticn

from my knowledge of what he meant, other than what it says.

Q Okavy.

Following the meetings of November 1, 1376

and/or the meetinss of November 8, 1976, did you participate

in any meetings, discussions, conferences or otherwise
prenare raterials corcerning the Consumers-Dow matter,
other than those zeaetings?

A I may have had just discussicns witi Lee and
Milt on all of these items during that interim pericd, but
I don't specifically recall any.

Q Did wou have any ghone conversaticns with ctler
parties to the proceeding during tlat periccd

- As I mentic..ed earlier, that chcne conversation

T . - \, .~ 3 . 5 .
I :ad with Myron Cherrv. I'm nct sure what the date was.

’ o f 2
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Q Okay. COther than that?

A I really don't think so.

Q Did you have any meetings with Mr. Temple?

A Individually?

Q Right, or with Mr, Nute present, or . . .

A I really don't recall.

Q After you transcribed your notes of these meetings

that we have discussed so far, that were typed un, did ycu
have cccasion to compare your version with Mr, Nute's
version or with anybody else's version cof the same meeting?

A No.

Q During any of these meetings when cross-examina-
tion‘r:eparation was being discussed with Jce Temple and
during those periods of time I assume that Judd Bacon was
not there, did Dave Rosso ~r Rex Renfrow suggest that Joe
Temple not express his own personal view, to the best of
your recnllection?

MR, POTTER: 1I'm scrry. What was the full

questicn?
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:
Q The short full gquesticn is: Did Rex Renfrow or

Dave Rnsso ever sucgest that Mr, Temple not excress nis
ewn perscnal view?
MR, POTTER: That's at a.y meeting?

MR, OLMSTEAD: At any of these meetincs.,

P4 “Foderal =R 7,
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THE WITNESS: You mean from 9«26 on?

BY M LMSTEAD:
Q Right, during the cross-examination preparation.

MR, CHARNOFF: You said 9=-26. Did ycu mean 9-29?

THE WITNESS: Yes, 9=29. I think I remember at
least one instance where Jce Temple was asked not to state
his personal viewpoint, because thev didn't feel it was
important.

I guess I could £ind it, I don't recall right
now who said it or when., 1In fact, I hink if you go back
to that cne meeting we talked about, where . . .

BY MR. OLMSTEAT.:

Q I +hink that you may be correct. Maybe we should
find it. I'm not sure that was during the cross-examinacicn
preparation, but I think that was talking arout the relevance
of hi. perscnal views,

A Let me just quicklvy lock through, then.

(Witness r=v .5 document.)
MR, POTTER: Take a lcok at pacge 3 of your minutes
¢f 1ll-8=76, and see if that's what vou're talking about,

THE WITNESS: Where it starts out, "Cave Rosso

MR, POTT=ER: Yes.
MR, QLMSTEAD: Whiech & 8 Shat?

MR, POTTZR: 1ll-3, Ané please understand, I'm

e . 1A
C"l. ce- Jedetal c/Xepotiers, _flyrgc_ : - 7t I:\\
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rnot trying to suggest that that is the answer, I'm just
trying to ==

TUE WITNESS: No, this is something == if you get
back into that paragraph on page 3 of ll-8-76 notes, "Dave
Rosso asked Joe how much of a sense did Joe have of a
decision that Dcw may eventually decide not to take nuclear
steam power from Consuners Power., Joe reiterated his
personal view on the matter. Milt stated that this was a
perfect answer for Joe, because he was locking at this from
a personal viewpcint. Roszo stated thLat from a Consumers
Power point of view, it would be better to ...~ the Dow
corporate position,®

MR, CHARNOFF: You might want to keep reading to
the bottom of that, '

THE WITNESS: "He said tha* this was because Joe
feels so strongly about Consumers Power being here at all.
Dave Rosso pointed out that he thoucht Joce felt that Dow
did not have proper control over all of this, Dave Rosso
stated that it was nct going to be good for Consumers Power
to have Joe stisss the negative cn this matter and stated
that Joe should stress the Dow corporate review position.”

MR. CEARNOFT: Xeep going to the next »aragragh.

THE WITNESS: I can jump over down &9 the next
0 the last sentence in the next raragraph:

"Dave Rossc stated that Joe may want to state

—_ . ” .
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what the Dow corporate position is, and then state what his
personal concerns are. Jce stated that he didn't have a
problem with that approach.”

T think in answering your gquesticn, I don't know
if Jo= ;as ever told by anyone that they only wanted his =
they didn't want his personal view, but, rather, that they
wanted the Dow corporate review position, I think that's
whzt I'm saying.

MR, POTTER: Take a look at your notes, tne
shortest one in the batch, the ll-15-76, Just lcok it over
and see if you can answer his gquestion based on those two.

(The witness reviewing documents.)

THE WITNESS: On page 2 of the 1ll~-15-76 notes,
third paragraph,

"Rex told Jce that he, Joe, should refrain

from referring to the fact that there were two
separate reviews, Michigan Division and Dow corporate.”

There again, they approcach it from this positicn
of we think the proper respense for Joe would be to tell
them what the Dow board's £final decisicn was, whici is to

say the Michigan Division's review decisi 21 wasn't

important.
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:
Q Was not important? Cr was not relevant?
A Was not relevant.

- ’ -~
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Q The reason I'm asking that is you told me earlier
that that was the position that Milt Wessel ==

MR, CHARNOFF: I think he used both terms. He
said before that a concept c¢f the Michigan position was
neither relevant nor important, were the words I heard hinm
say earlier,

THE WITNESS: Yes. In any event, they mezn the
same thing, the way I use them. The fact is, they didn't
feel that leaving the Michigan Division review position out
was prasenting less than == you know, full information on
the situation,

MR, CHARNOFF: Could I have that answer read back,
please, that last sentence or two?

(Whereupon, the Reporter read from the record,
as requested.,)

MR, CHARNOFF: They didn't feel, is that what
vou said? They didn't feel? ‘

THE WITNESS: Yes.

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q All right., November 15, 1976, on page 2. This

is a memorandum to file, where I assume that the cross-examine-

-

ation preparation wa: continuing with Joe Temp’ 1 -
right?

A Yes.

Q Dewn at the bottem =f the pace thers is reference
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to a disci.sion followed concerning cocal pricing assumptions,

and a discussion of the status of tha* position.
A Yas.
Q Was this disagreement that occurrec between
Consumers and Dow on coal costs at this meeting heated?
A No. I think it's a matter, as I pointed ocut ==
Q Was it your impressicn that =-
MR, CHARNOFF: Excuse me. Were you finished with
your answer?
THE WIINESS: No, I was going to say tha are
was a difference of opinion as toc ~here they got the
price information from, an! I think it was merely that.
At one point . . . I guess I confused the record, because
I'm trying to remember that about coal pricing, but there
were also discussions about estimates from -- no, wait a
minute, They were talking about high-sulfur and low=sulfur

coal. The concern was that pogsibly Consumers' pricing

|

\

was done on low=sulfur ccal and Dow's was Jone on high-sulfurI

cocal, and the difference of cost assumpticons and pricing
assumptions might have stemmed frcm those differences.
BY MR, OLMSTEAD:
Q Ckay. You starsted £0 say that there was a
disacreement on some other tyre ¢f cost estinates., What

was that?

A I was toving %0 rememb:r if there was a disagreement
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on cost estimates as they went tc == it had something to
do with the Black & Veatch study, but I just don't recall
what it is now. I never fully understcod that part of it.
I mean I didn't work with it enocugh tc fully understand.
Q But you do recall a cisagreement ==

A Yes. It's in my notes. That's why I was

. concerned =-- confused, as such,

Q To your knowl :dge, was there a belief on the part
of either Mr, Templz M~, Nute, Mr. Wessel or yourself,
that Conzumers Power was deliberately inflating cocal costs
in their environmental report, or in their analysis of the
alternatives to t' e nuclear steam project?

A I remember I don't feel that they had the feeling

that Consumers was deliberately trying to inflate coal costs.

My notes den't :etlect'that, I don't believe, Let me t..ie
a look ==

Q You're not aware of any discussion within Dow
internally as to ccal costs, and discrepancies between Dow's

estimates and Consumers' estimates?

A I'm not aware of any. I wasn't a party on that.
Q If we go back just for a mcement to your ll-8
notes ==
MR, POTTER: 0ff the recori.

i ; . ‘
(Discssion ¢ff the record.)

MR, POCTTER: Back on the record.

p— » - \
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BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q This i: your ll-8-76 notes, rage 4.

A If I may go back to the previc:s question, just
to clarify the record, on page 2 of the ll-8 notes, there's
a discussion on that page == I think /t's the second and
third paragraphs =-- about a disagreerent about coal costs,
and it had to do with inf’ation and a few other things.

But in reading back through these things I don't
get the impression and I don't recall that . . .

Q Well, they seemed to scothe cver their disagree-
ment by using the reference that you gave to me in response
to my question, that one was using high=sulfur cnd the
other was usi-y low=sulfur. But I was just trying to get
a feel from your own minéd for whether the Dow pecple who
were involved found that explanatica credible, or if they

felt that it was » deliberate escalation of coal costs.

A Yes, I wasn'®t a party to that, so . . .

Q Nkay.

A If£ it in fact happened, I don't really kncw.
Q If we can g0 to page 4 of those ll-3 nctes,

at the top of that page ycu repcort tnat Dave Rossc thought
that Jce was a lousy witness in terms of Consumers Power's
pesition in the case.

New, had this cpinicn Ceen expresse<ed on any

other coccasicn, during a rzcess ©r in any cther manner, %o
:"W J ’ ‘e /7
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your knowledge?

A I just don't . . . I don't recall anybeody tellinc
me that, either during a meeting or at recess, other than
whgt I reported there.

Q All right.

If I take the word out, "lousv" and go back to
Mr, Wessel's concern that the testimony presented by Dow
Chemical, presented in a direct fashion rather than in a
question-and-answer fashion, might tend t¢ look like, in
a separate proceeding where there was litigation between
Consumers and .ow over the contract breach, it might tend
to look as though Dow didn't support Consumers, do you
suppose that that same concern that Mr. Wessel had might
be the concern that Mr, Ro-30 21so expressed?

MR, POTTER: Again, i have to cbject. You're
asking him now to try to pick the minds of twc people and ==

MR, OLMSTEAD: I am, I'm asking him to give me
a feel of the general attitude of the parties at the
mceting.,

MR, PCTTER: Well, the cbjecticn is on the recc:d.

Go ahead, Mr. Dur-ad.

r tial? » -3 i 2 ! 4 te
¥R, OLMSTEAD: Well, I doubt if I'm going to ask
it at the hearzing, but I wctld like to Xnow what the

generil attitude was of the parties at that meetinc.

MR, CZARICFY: 1I'm nct sure I even uncderstooed

: SO - 2N S S - 7
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the question. Did you say Resso was concerned whe+ther ==
MR, OLMSTEAD: I'm asking if the concern that

Ross? is expressing here in Mr, Durand's opinicn is similar

to the von~ -~ that Mr. Wessel had about Temple as 3 witnes=

because of Mr, Wessel's concern under the Dow-Consumers
contract that Dow had to support Consumers, if it's the
same type of concern; namely, what Dow found cbjecticnable
in Mr, Temple as a witness, Consume-s alsc was finding
cbjectionable.

THE WITNESS: Again, I don't have an opinion cu
that, because just reading through there wouldn't support
it. I'd have to speculate.

BY MR, OLMSTEAD:

Q Okay. Back to the memc of Nevember 15, I notice
that your name was not at the to» of this memo as it was in
all the other memos. Is there any reason foi that?

R I think it was just inadvertently left :£f£, In
fact, I can refer to my original . . .

Q Excuse me, those dncuments you're referring to
are the oiiginals of this?

A Yes. NO . « o wait a ninute, It's off of that,

tco. It must have been a tyrc. I cuess I could ¢e back

-

¥

to my rouch, mv original lonchand.

.

Zou don't hapren to have the Serctemcer 2% loncer

[ )

versicn in there, do you?
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A No. No, I don't. I sure don't.

Q You can't blame a fel'ow for asking.
(Laughter.)

A As I said, I'll go back and loock. I 2idn't

throw anything away, so I'm assuming it's there.
Q Okay. Were these notes con November 15 your

first transcripticn, or are there other versions,

R First transcription.

Q You haven't made any other?

A No.

Q Okay. When did you transcribe these?

A I really don't recall,

Q And was Zonsumers Po@er ever given the oprortun-

ity to review these notes for accuracy, to your knowledge?
A I a.’n't give them to them, no.
Q Page >, last paragraph, of the ll-l15, there's
a reference to scmebcedy named Echols there. Dcoes that
perscn have any relationship to the Midland proceeding, to
your knowledge?
A No.
MR, OLMSTEAD: CQff the record.
(Discussicon cff the record,)
MR, CIMST=EAD: 3ack on the recors.,
I have no further cquestions o this witness.

MR, SEARNCFT: I 9ust have about three hours

-
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worth. I think we -“ught to go —ight ahead.
'Zaughte=.)
MR, POTTER: Why don't we start arownd 7:00 in

the morning, because I've got about == I may have akout an

hour.
MR, OLMSTEAD: I intend to just observe.
MR, CHARNOFF: Let's compromise and make it
7:30.

MR, OLMSTEAD: Fine.

That's it, until 7:30 tomorrow morning,

(Whereupon, at 8:10 p.m., the taking of the
deposition was recessed, to be continued at 7:30 a.m.,

Tuesday, 15 May 1279.)
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